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To Our Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Tic Tac International Holdings Company Limited
(the “Company”), | hereby present the annual report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the

year ended 30 April 2017.
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Chairman
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

BUSINESS REVIEW

Last year, the Hong Kong economy confinued fo recover af a slow pace. Waitch
refailers have been struggling hard as the consumers’ spending aftitude have
changed drastically. Consumers have been looking for lifestyle time-pieces from
previously wellknown watch brands, and from medium price range products to
comparatively low price merchandise. Although visitors from Mainland China
might have recovered a bit, nevertheless their consumption sentiments were not

reflecting in the same direction.

Our Group still manages to control and operate its retail outlet network,
comprising a fotal of 21 retail outlets as at 30 April 2017, in top class shopping
malls located at prime locations, such as Times Square in Causeway Bay,
Harbour City and iSquare in Tsim Sha Tsui, langham Place in Mongkok and
New Town Plaza in Shatin. Our Group's refail network covered @ multi-brand

outlets and 12 single-brand boutique outlets as of 30 April 2017.

However, as a result of the unfavourable business environment, our Group
recorded a net loss of approximately HK$27.7 million for the year ended 30
April 2017, representing an increase of approximately HK$15.1 million as
compared fo a net loss approximately HK$12.6 million for the year ended 30
April 2016.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 30 April 2017, our Group recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$283.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$38.1 million from approximately HK$321.3 million as compared to

previous financial year.

The loss atiributable to owners of the Company increased by approximately
HK$15.1 million or 119.8% from approximately HK$12.6 million for the year
ended 30 April 2016 to approximately HK$27.7 million for the year ended 30
April 2017.

DIVIDEND PAYMENT

The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the year ended 30
April 2017.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FERE(E)

PROSPECTS

Over the course of last year, we have worked hard to regain our competifiveness
under the yet challenging market conditions. The economic slowdown in
Mainland China, the appreciation of the Hong Kong dollar, political instability
in several counfries and within Hong Kong, have resulted in a lackluster
economy that further weakening the local and foreign consumers’ sentiment and
hence created an even fougher business environment for many refail players

comparing fo last year.

Operating cosfs have remained high as our stores primarily located in those
prime malls where the cost of rent has not elastically decreased despite the poor
economic conditions. Nevertheless, as the tenancy agreements of certain shops
will be expiring in 2018, we are confident that we will be able o reduce rental
costs so as to reflect the current market situation and hence enhancing shop
performance. Before that, we have taken decisive, immediate action on the
challenges we faced. In a very deliberate way we have made the changes
needed fo re-energise our operation by ways of shop re-imaging, the introduction
of new brands with unique design or concept from different countries and the
launching of various markefing programs such as crossover events with local

artists and animator, and promotional events by theme.

As well as investing in new branding promotion programs, we managed fo
bring in the concept of environmental friendly into our products and we are also
looking for new business model and increasing product portfolio in order to have
our business turnaround. On shelf availability in shops means customers are now
having wider choice in terms of watches branding, designs, materials,

functionality and pricing which fit their personalities and preferences.

The Group are sfill cost conscious in maintaining our day-o-day operation and
managed to reduce our invenfory. However, as the basic operating costs are
still_high within Hong Kong, we will remain highly vigilant and implement

relevant measures during essence of market situations.

The Group will continue ifs effort in seeking breakthrough on its online shopping
platform and capture massive potentials of the internet through the social media
platform as we believe those new media platform will be the major source of

income in the very near future.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere appreciation and gratitude fo all our customers and brand owners for
their dedicated support. At the same time, | wish to thank all our staff for their
generous support, commitment and dedication towards work and to the Group
all these years. Last but not least, my heartfelt thanks o the Board members for

their contribution, and to our shareholders for their frust and continuous support.

Lam Man Wah
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 July 2017
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

GOVERNANCE REPORT
I&iﬁ ?‘ié&m‘- \A$ﬁ [=

We are pleased fo present our first report in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Govemnance Reporting Guide (the "ESG Guide’] as set out in
Appendix 27 fo the listing Rules. The Company is committed to improving the
sustainability of our operations and driving improvements. We strive to utilize
resources efficiently and effectively in our operations to reduce impacts on the
environment; raise our social responsibilities fogether with our stakeholders’

including our suppliers, sfaff and customers;

We believe by promoting sustainable development, we can creafe longferm
value for not only the Company’s shareholders, but also for our stakeholders and
as well as the general public. Hence, the Company cares about the impact of
its daily operation on environment and society, strives fo set a good example for

the public, while conducting business operation.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Emission

The major source of our carbon emissions is the use of electrical equipment
through the use of electrical power consumption. We have implemented various
energy-saving measures to help reduce our carbon emissions.

In order to reduce this main source of the Group's carbon footprint, the
Company has been implementing the following energy-saving and energy
efficiency measures at various office locations to reduce greenhouse gas

emission:

a.  Purchase and install high-performance electrical equipment and appliances

in office and shops

b.  Use of LED lighting in newly opened shops, and the gradually change of
LED lighting in existing shops

c.  Opfimal control of lighting and airconditioning by way of zoning control

so as to reduce emission especially at vacant working areas

d. Anindoor temperature at around 25°C is recommended at all time within

office
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e.  Swiching off of airconditioning and lighting in Executives’ room when

they are out of office

f. All' company car has been swapped from fuel consumption to electric-

powered models

g.  Business travels have been reduced to minimum and the number of
fravelers has been kept at low level; and business class travelling were

restricted to long haul for senior executives

Use of Resources

The resources used by the Company are principally atiributed to electricity
consumed at its shops and office. To use our resources efficiently, regular
assessments are performed. We collect every shop's power consumption and

analyze data on a regular basis.

The Group is already on the track to promote paperless infernal communications.
Instead of using printed memos, the use of communication apps through mobile
phone is encouraged. We encourage the use of recycled papers for printing
and doubleside printing while avoiding unnecessary colour printing. In addition,
a recycle paper collection box have been placed near every printer and
copying machine and hence colleagues could make use of those papers where

necessary.

Waste management is also the Group's concern and that the Company pledge
to produce least wastage on one hand, and dispose its waste by classifying

them into different categories:

a.  Toner cartridge at shops were sent fo designated suppliers who would

gather them for re-use

b.  Paper wasfe such as cartoon boxes, used papers were being put into
designated collection points in shopping centres and office building for

recycling

c.  Other non-hazardous and non-recycling waste were sent to designated

collection points for disposal
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIE g hERRE (B)

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Workforce

The Company believes that one of the key aspects of its success is the good
relationship it maintains with employees. To accomplish our commitment to
employees, we provides compefitive employee benefits and comprehensive
fraining programs to employees. A fair recruitment and promotion policy is
adopted by the Group. Candidates or employees are considered based on their
qualifications and work experiences regardless of gender, age, race and family

status.

Benefits and Compensation

We offer a comprehensive and competitive compensation package fo aftract
and retain falents. The Group has also adopted various bonus and incentive

schemes for its sfaff in order fo motivate to achieve Company’s pre-sef targets.

As we care about our sfaff, various fringe benefits such as annual leave,
marriage leave, matemity and paternity leaves, are offered o our workforce
vacation frip fo nearby countries af the cost of the Company were also offered o

staff on discretionary basis.

Development and Training

To maintain a high level of sales and customers services, standard operation
procedures and training will be provided to existing and newly employed staff
from fime to time. New recruits are provided with on-board frainings to help
them familiarize themselves with the culture, business and operations of the
Company.

The Group also updates the latest information of the industry which is essential to

its operation from time to fime.

Health and Occupational Safety

The Group is committed to providing a safe and healthy working environment fo
all employees. We conduct regular monitoring of the work environment and staff
facilities. Employees are asked to stringently abide by all safety rules and
regulations, and utilize available and applicable profection measures at all times

to avoid accidents and profect themselves and co-workers in accordance with

the relevant laws and regul&onl
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Supply Chain Management Product Responsibility

The Group expects all our business partners, including the brands owner fo
respect our key values and philosophy of ethical business practices. Hence, the
Group will conduct evaluation on the performance of its suppliers based on a set
of criteria including product range, delivery schedule, service quality, price and
credit terms. On and off we will make enquiries to suppliers to make sure they
are aware of their social responsibility and commitment towards fo the

community.

Product Responsibility and Customer Services

The Group aims to achieve a high standard on its products that sell and on its
services that provide quality after-sales to customers so as to maintain the quality
and sustainability of the products. VWe follow up on every compliant by our
customer especially on merchandises no matter the cusfomers are in Hong Kong
or visitors travelling back to their own home countries. Regular training and
discussion session are provided to our sfaff to improve our service quality. We
are committed fo maintaining close relationship with our cusfomers, adjust and
develop products to meet the needs of the market with reference fo the

cusfomer’s preferences and demands.

Consumer Data Protection

The Group considers personal data privacy in top priority and that staff are
trained on the data protection principles and are required fo strictly follow the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. All the collected data is solely used for our

e-commerce business and formal markefing purposes.

Intellectual Property Rights Protection

As the Group carries more than 80 brands of watches, we are well aware of
the respect of third porﬁes/ intellectual property righfs and so will pay extreme

affention fo ensure the proper usage of these intellectual properties.

Anti-corruption

A system with good moral infegrity and anticorruption mechanism is the
cornerstone for a sustainable and healthy development of the Group. Senior
execufives and shop-incharge have been given training and briefings or
seminars on anti-corruption organised by the Group and the Independent
Commission Against Corruption of Hong Kong. Those messages would then

pass o every employee by the shop-incharge.

Committed to the highest standards of openness, infegrity and accountability, we
encourage employees fo report any suspected misconduct or malpractice. Upon

receipt of report, we will conduct an investigation to fake further action.
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Community

The Group always seeks to be positive force in the communities in which it
operates and maintain close communications and interactions with the
communities in order to contribute to local development. During the year, the
Group has parficipated in the “Walk for Millions”, being a charitable event
organized by The Community Chest, and also a joint event organized by The
Federation of Hong Kong Waich Trades and Industries Limited providing on-site

working experiences fo pupils at Vocational Training Centre.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue, of which consisted of sales from retail and wholesales of
watches, for the year ended 30 April 2017 was approximately HK$283.2
million, representing a decreased by approximately HK$38.1 million or 11.9%
from approximately HK$321.3 million for the year ended 30 April 2016.
Revenue from refail of watches for the year ended 30 April 2017 was
approximately HK$281.6 million, representing a decreased by approximately
HK$37.9 million or 11.9% from approximately HK$319.5 million for the year
ended 30 April 2016, while, a revenue from wholesales of watches for the year
ended 30 April 2017 was approximately HK$1.6 million, representing an
decreased by approximately HK$0.2 million or 11.1% from approximately
HK$1.8 million for the year ended 30 April 2016. The decrease in revenue
was mainly atfributable to the continual weakened local consumption sentiment

and decreased in consumption on watches by tourists visiting Hong Kong.

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales primarily consists of cost of invenfories sold and provision for
slow-moving inventories. Our cost of sales decreased by approximately
HK$13.5 million or 6.5% from approximately HK$206.4 million for the year
ended 30 April 2016 to approximately HK$192.9 million for the year ended
30 April 2017. During the year, the Group recorded a provision for slow-
moving inventories of approximately HK$6.9 million (2016: approximately
HK$2.6 million) to profit or loss. The provision for slow-moving inventories as at
30 April 2017 amounting to approximately HK$22.7 million (As at 30 April
2016: approximately HK$15.8 million).

Eliminating the effect of the provision for slow-moving inventories, cost of sales
before provision of slow-moving inventory decreased by approximately
HK$17.8 million or 8.7% from approximately HK$203.8 million for the year
ended 30 April 2016 to approximately HK$186.0 million for the year ended
30 April 2017. The decrease was in line with the decrease in revenue of
approximately 11.9% during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BIEE & am Lo AT ()

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit decreased by approximately HK$24.6 million or 21.4% from
approximately HK$114.9 million for the year ended 30 April 2016 to
approximately HK$90.3 million for the year ended 30 April 2017 which was
in line with the decrease in revenue. Our overall gross profit margin decreased
from approximately 35.8% for the year ended 30 April 2016 1o approximately
31.9% for the year ended 30 April 2017. The decrease was mainly affributable

to the increase in provision for slow-moving inventories during the year.

Eliminating the effect of the provision for slow-moving inventories, the gross profit
margin decreased from approximately 36.6% for the year ended 30 April 2016
to approximately 34.3% for the year ended 30 April 2017. The decrease was
primarily attributable to the widespread discounting and promotion activities to

maintain market shares, which resulted in deteriorating gross margin.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately HK$2.6
million or 2.5% from approximately HK$105.4 million for the year ended 30
April 2016 to approximately HK$102.8 million for the year ended 30 April
2017. The decrease was primarily atfributable to the decrease of turnover rent

expense during the year.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses decreased by approximately HK$4.9 million or
23.9% from approximately HK$20.5 million for the year ended 30 April 2016
to approximately HK$15.6 million for the year ended 30 April 2017. The
decrease was primarily atfributable to the decrease in the professional expenses
during the year.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased by approximately HK$0.3 million or 42.9% from
approximately HK$0.7 million for the year ended 30 April 2016 to
approximately HK$0.4 million for the year ended 30 April 2017. The decrease
was primarily afributable to the decrease in bank borrowings during the year.
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Loss before income tax and loss attributable to owners of
the Company

As a result of the foregoing, our loss before income tax increased by
approximately HK$16.4 million or 134.4% from approximately HK$12.2
million for the year ended 30 April 2016 to approximately HK$28.6 million for
the year ended 30 April 2017.

The loss attributable to owners of the Company increased by approximately
HK$15.1 million or 119.8% from approximately HK$12.6 million for the year
ended 30 April 2016 1o approximately HK$27.7 million for the year ended 30
April 2017. Such increase was mainly attributable fo the following factors that
were recorded fo profit or loss for the year ended 30 April 2017:

(1) Provision for slow-moving inventories of approximately HK$6.9 million {2016:

approximately HK$2.6 million).

[2)  Impairment of property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$4.4
million (2016: approximately HK$ 1.0 million).

[3)  Provision for onerous operating leases of approximately HK$6.2 million (2016:

approximately HK$6.2 million).

FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group funded its liquidity and capital requirements primarily through cash

inflows from operafing activities and bank borrowings.

As at 30 April 2017, the Group's fofal cash and bank balances were
approximately HK$37.1 million (30 April 2016: approximately HK$41.8
million), most of which are denominated in HK$. The current ratio (calculated by
current assets divided by current liabilities) of the Group decreased from
approximately 4.3 times as at 30 April 2016 fo approximately 3.8 times as af
30 April 2017. The gearing ratio (calculated by net debt divided by total
capital) of the Group maintains at nef cash position as at 30 April 2017 and
30 April 2016. During the year ended 30 April 2017, the Group failed to
comply with one of the covenant requirements related fo the Group's bank loans
amounting to approximately HK$5.5 million. In July 2017, the bank granted an
one-off waiver from compliance with the relevant breached covenant requirement
for the year ended 30 April 2017. The Group is also negotiating with the bank
fo revise the covenant requirement in order fo ensure confinuous compliance of

the covenant requirements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEENwm ko ()

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING O REREFEAR

ARE LT REFEENR 2 KA R
BB HARI07SEEET  REAAT
AMA-2—EFMA-+tN\BZARER
FBBEHHRBA -

The net proceeds from the Llisting of the Company [affer deducting the
underwriting fees and related expenses) amounted to approximately HK$107.5
million, which are intended to be applied in the manner as disclosed in the
prospectus of the Company dated 28 April 2015.

During the period from 12 May 2015, being the date of the listing of the BH_-_ZT—HAER A+ _-_R(BIARAT WA

Company, o 30 April 2017, the Group has applied the net proceeds as

follows:

ME_ZT-—LFHUA=TEHMB TEELD
BT A BRAEREFE

14 Amount utilised Amount unufilised
» as at as at
2 30 April 2017 30 April 2017
< R-B—+tF R-_F—tF
3 mA=+A mA=+8
g EBRAEH RNEBATHE
6—_,_ HK$’000 HK$'000
Ed FTHET TET
-
g Expand our refail and sales network BREMNZERHEERS 19,312 18,301
% Improve our same-store sales growth and profit margin - 24 2 & 7189 [ /5 $4 & 12 & &
g 7 12,303 593
> Improve our supplier network and enhance HERMAOEERAS R
g the knowledge of our sales RRHEHEETINAZ 333 3,965
_g; Increase our marketing effort hnog & 8 h = 5,189 2,334
S Repay a shortterm bank loan with inferest EERHRITERENER 37,613 =
S Working capital and other general corporate purposes & 38 & & I H fh — g 1 %
h Ak 5,100 2,423
Total ®at 79,850 27,616

The unutilised net proceeds from the listing are placed in the bank accounts of

the Group.

APAZLETHBERBEFEERRAEED
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 30 April 2017, there was no acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries and associated companies by the Company.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30 April 2017, the Group had a tofal of 98 [2016: 11
The total remuneration costs incurred by the Group for the year ended 30 April
2017 were approximately HK$33.4 million (2016: approximately HK$34.3

million). We review the performance of our employees annually and use the

0) employees.

results of such review in our annual salary review and promotion appraisal, in

order fo atiract and retain valuable employees.

DEBTS AND CHARGE ON ASSETS

The Group had total borrowings of approximately HK$16.0 million as at 30
April 2017, while that as at 30 April 2016 was approximately HK$17.5

million.

The carmrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are denominated in HK$ and

unsecured and approximate fo their fair values.

As at 30 April 2017, the Group did not have any foreign exchange contracts,
inferest or currency swaps or other financial derivatives.

As stated in Note 2. 1(a) of the consolidated financial statements, bank loans of
HK$5.5 million as at 30 April 2017 are drawn from one of the Group's
banking facilities for which one of the covenants requirements was in breach. In
July 2017, the bank granted an oneoff waiver from compliance with the
relevant breached covenant requirement for the year ended 30 April 2017. The
Group is also negotiating with the bank to revise the covenant requirement in

order fo ensure continuous compliance of the covenant requirements.

As at 30 April 2017
approximately HK$76.1

, the Group had aggregate banking faciliies of
million (As at 30 April 2016: approximately HK$85.0
million), for overdrafts and loans. Unused facilities as at the same date were
approximately HK$60.5 million (As at 30 April 2016: approximately HK$68.2
million). The banking facilities were granted fo the subsidiaries of the Group and
were subject to annual review and guaranteed by unlimited guarantees from the

Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEwm &k (8)

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

The Group did not have other plans for material investments and capital asses.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as described in this annual report, there was no other significant investment

during the year.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had no capital commitments as at 30 April 2017 (2016: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 30 April
2017 and 2016.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year

ended 30 April 2017.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) hereby present their report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30 April 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the retail and wholesales of watches in Hong Kong.

There was no significant change in ifs activities during the year.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by operating segment is set

out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group's business, an analysis of the Group's performance
during the vyear using key financial performance indicators and likely future
development in the Group's business are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement”
and "Management Discussion and Analysis” sectfions, respectively on pages 3

fo 5 and on pages 11 to 16 of this annual report.

Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are
discussed in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 3 to 5 of this annual report.
No important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the

financial year under review.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year and up to the date of this report, we have complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations in the places where we operate in all material

respects.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that its success depends on the support from key stakeholders

which comprise employees, customers, suppliers, shareholders and  other

stakeholders.

Employees

The Group recognized that employees are the valuable assefs of the Group. The
Group has complied with the applicable labour laws and regulations by
regularly reviewed the remuneration package of Group's employees with
reference o market standard, and conform to the performance, qualifications
and experience of employees.

Customers

The Group is committed to provide good quality service fo its customers and
enhance the loyalty of customers by increasing the interaction with customers
through social media platforms, which provide good foundation to our Group's

overall performance in long run.

Suppliers

The Group has mainfained solid relationships with ifs watch suppliers. The
Group cooperative with suppliers that are committed to quality of watch
products.

Shareholders and other stakeholders

The Group has adopted an ongoing dialogue with its investors and shareholders
as provided in “Investor Relations” and “Shareholder Communication” sections
on pages 35 to 50 of the Corporate Governance Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2017 are set out in the
consolidated sfatement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on

page 58. The Direcfors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the year

ended 30 April 2017

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR
Defails of the shares of the Compon;/ [the “Shares”) issued in the year ended 30

April 2017 are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At as 30 April 2017, distributable reserves of the Company amounted fo
approximately HK$96.4 million (2016: approximately HK$97.1
movements in distributable reserves during the year are sef out in Note 28 o the

million). The

consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's cusfomers can be categorised info two types, namely refail

customers and wholesale customers.

For the financial year ended 30 April 2017, the Group's five largest customers
in aggregate accounted for approximately 0.4% of the tfotal sales and the

Group's largest customer accounted for approximately 0.2% of total sales.

The main suppliers of the Group are watch suppliers. For the financial year
ended 30 April 2017, the Group's five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 97.9% of the total purchases and purchases from the largest

supplier accounted for approximately 86.4% of the total purchases.

As at 30 April 2017, Mr. lam Man Wah, the chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company, held inferests in a company, which is one of the five

largest customer of the Company for the financial year ended 30 April 2017.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders of the Company [which, fo the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any interest in
the Group's five largest customers and suppliers during the year ended 30 April
2017

Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Defails of borrowings of the Group during the year are set out in Note 22 o the

consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five financial years is set out on page 124 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report

were!

Executive Directors

Mr. Llam Man Wah (Chairman of the Board)
Ms. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa
Mr. Tsang Hok Man

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chong Man leung (appointed on 7 October 20106)
Mr. Cheng Kin Chung (resigned on 7 Ocfober 2016)
Mr. Fung Tat Man

Mr. Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie

The terms of office of each Director are subject to refirement by rofation in

accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.
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CHANGE OF DIRECTORS AND POSITIONS HELD = =

Report of the Directors (Continued)
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RRAXRAEEEES

WITH BOARD COMMITTEES OF THE COMPANY FRigEB{ 22 &

Name/Positions

HE A

Mr. Cheng Kin Chung B s

— Independent non-executive Director ~ — B FEHITE S
— Member of Nomination Committee —REZLBEeKE8
— Chairman of Audit Committee —EBEREEETR
— Member of Remuneration Commitee — HENEZEE €K B
Mr. Chong Man Leung BXREE

— Independent non-executive Director ~ — BB IFHITES
— Member of Nomination Committee —RELTEEKE

— Member of Audit Committee —EBZELEEEKE

— Chairman of Remuneration Commitee — & ZE B € £ &

Mr. Fung Tat Man BEXRE
— Chairman of Audit Committee —EBZELESEF
— Member of Remuneration Commitee — ZHEEZEE €K 8

Further details were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 7 Ocfober

2016.

—|

Appointment Date
ZEBRH

7 October 2016

—E—R"Ft+AtH
7 October 2016
—E—-R"F+AtH
7 October 2016
—E—-XR"F+A+tH
7 October 2016
—E—XR"Ft+AtH

appointed as member of Audit Committee
on 21 April 2015 and re-designated as
chairman of Audit Committee on 7
October 2016
%:§—£$EH:+—E§§E%
+AtH %ﬁ%%%ﬁé%@ﬂiﬁ
appointed as chairman of Remuneration
Committee on 21 April 2015 and
re-designated as member of
Remuneration Committee on 7 October
2016
RZEBE-—AENA-+—BEZEA

FMEEEETR YR _T—F
TALtHERBEATMEEENKE

AtBzR&-

Cessation Date

HERMY

7 October 2016
—E-XRF+AtA
7 October 2016
—E—-XR¥+AtH
7 October 2016
—E—-X"F+AtH
7 October 2016
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has an unexpired service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific term of
three years, but subject o the relevant provisions of the Company's Articles of
Association or any other applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or

retire from their office.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Defails of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company and the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively. Upon the listing of the Company, remuneration
packages of the Direcfors are recommended by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board as described on pages 35 to 50 of the Corporate

Govermance Report.

DIRECTORS AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director or controlling shareholder of the Company had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance fo the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year ended 30 April 2017
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 April 2017, the interests or short positions of the Directors and chief
execufives in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
specified undertakings or any of ifs associated corporations [within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the

SFO, were as follows:

Name Capacity

i g6

Lam Man Wah Inferest in a controlled corporation (Nofe 1)
X E REEEE N #ERE ()

Chan Ka Yee, Elsa Inferest of spouse (Note 1)

PR 2= 1% BB (Mat])

Note 1:  Mr. Llam Man Wah and Ms. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa are the beneficial owners of

Tic Tac Investment Holdings Limited, being the holding company of the
Company, and was therefore deemed fo have an interest in 565,000,000
Shares which Tic Tac Investment Holdings Limited were inferested. Ms. Chan Ka
Yee, Elsa is the spouse of Mr. Lam Man Wah.

Note 2:  All interests stated above represent long positions.

During the year ended 30 April 2017, there were no debt securities issued by
the Group at any time. Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, ifs subsidiaries, its holding company or ifs other
associated corporations [within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) a party to
any arrangement fo enable the Direcfors and chief executives of the Company
lincluding their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold any inferests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or its specified undertakings or other associated corporation, as
recorded in the register required fo be kept under section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company as at 30 April 2017
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Save as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of any person who will
have an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would
be required fo be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO as at 30 April 2017.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, as at 30 April 2017, the following
shareholders [not being a director or chief executive of the Company) had
inferests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the regisfer required to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO:

Long positions in shares of the Company

Name Capacity
=r 47

Beneficial owner (Note 1)

ExmBEAEANMGE])

Tic Tac Investment Holdings Limited
HEREBERAER QA

Note 1: Mr. lam Man Wah and Ms. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa, both Directors, are the

beneficial owners of Tic Tac Investiment Holdings Limited, being the holding
company of the Company, and was therefore deemed to have an interest in
565,000,000 Shares which Tic Tac Investment Holdings Llimited were
interested. Ms. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa is the spouse of Mr. Llam Man Wah.

Note 2: Al interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of any person who will
have an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would
be required fo be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange as
recorded in the register required fo be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO as at 30 April 2017.

As at the date of this annual fepo'ﬂi, 106 shareholders of the Company has agreed

L
fo waive or waived any dividends.
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DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN A COMPETING

For the year ended 30 April 2017 and up to the date of this report, the Directors
are not aware of any business or interest of the Directors, the management of the
Company and their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) that
compete or may compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict

of interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.

On 21 April 2015, the Company has entered info a noncompetition deed with
each of the controlling shareholders, namely Mr. Lam Man Wah, Ms. Chan Ka
Yee, Elsa and Tic Tac Investment Holdings Limited (collectively, the “Covenantors”)
and his/her associates [as defined under the Listing Rules). Pursuant to the non-
competition deed, each of the Covenantors irrevocably and unconditionally,
jointly and severally, covenants and undertakes with the Company that each of
the Covenantors shall not, and shall procure that none of his/her/its close
associates shall, directly or indirectly, establish, invest, involve in, engage in,
manage, operate or otherwise hold any right or interest, directly or indirectly, in
any business is or may be in competition with the business carried out by the
Group, save and except Mr. lam Man Wah's existing interests in two
companies non-wholly owned by Mr. lam Man Wah. For the avoidance of
doubt, each of the Covenantors shall notf, and shall procure that none of his/
her/its close associates shall, be involved in the management and operation of
those two companies.

During the reporting period, the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed on behalf of the Company, the compliance with the non-competition
deed entered into between the Company and the Covenantors and his/her
associates. The independent non-executive Directors are safisfied that the

controlling shareholders and their associates have complied with the provisions

of the deed.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save for the related party fransactions disclosed in Note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements, no fransaction, arrangement or contract of significance in
relation to the Group's business to which the Company, its holding company or
any of their respective subsidiaries was a party and in which a Direcfor or an
enfity connected with a Director had a material inferest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted af the end of the financial year or at any time during the

financial year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 30 April 2017 was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries o party fo any arrangements fo enable the Directors fo acquire
benefits by means of the acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Defails of related party transactions of the Group for the year ended 30 April
2017 are sef ouf in Note 26 fo the consolidated financial statements. None of
the related party transactions as disclosed in Note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements constitutes a connected transaction or continuing connected

fransaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold
any of the listed securities of the Company during the year ended 30 April
2017,

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors org,t,fhe latest practicable date prior to issue of
this report, the Company has maintained the sufficient public float of at least

25% of the Company's issued shares as at the date of this report.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30 April 2017, the Group had 98 employees. Remuneration of the
Group's employees is determined in accordance with the terms of government
policies and by reference to market level and the performance, qualifications
and experience of employees. Discretionary bonuses are paid fo a few
employees as recognition of and reward for their contribution to the corporate
development. Other benefits include contributions to refirement schemes and

housing allowances.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No confracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were enfered info or existed
during the year ended 30 April 2017

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The arficles of associations of the Company provides that the Directors shall be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses with they shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or

about the execution of their duty.

Pursuant fo which the Company had arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of any potential legal action against the Directors and  senior
management in respect of potential legal actions that may be incurred in the
course of performing their duties.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

There were no connected fransaction or confinuing connected fransaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Llisting Rules which are subject fo the
reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’ approval requirements

under the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”] which was adopted
pursuant to a resolufion passed by the Company's shareholders on 21 April
2015 ("Adoption Date’) for the primary purpose of providing eligible
participants an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company and to
motivate, aftract and refain the eligible participants whose contributions are
important fo the longferm growth and profitability of the Group. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include any employees, any Executives, Non-
execufive Direcfors [including Independent Non-executive Directors], advisors,
consultants of the Company or any of ifs subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under the Scheme and
any other schemes of the Company [excluding opfions lapsed pursuant fo the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company) must not exceed 10% of the
issued shares of the Company as at the date of Adoption Date. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued under the Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company must not exceed 80,000,000 shares representing
approximately 10% of the issued shares of the Company as af the date of this
report.

The tofal number of shares issued and to be issued to each eligible participant
under the Scheme in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the issued
shares of the Company unless approved in advance by the shareholders of the
Company in general meefing.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and fo be granted to each grantee under the Scheme (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue. Any further
grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to approved by its
shareholders in general meefing with such granfee and his or her close
associates abstaining from voting.

The offer of a grant of options under the Scheme may be accepted within 28
days from the date of the offer and by payment of HK$1.00 as consideration
for the grant of an option. An opfion may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme at any fime during a period as to be determined and
nofified by the Directors to each grantee, but shall end in any event not lafer
than 10 years from the date of the grant of option.

The Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing on
the listing date of the Company. (- 4

The exercise price is determined by the Directors and shall be af least the highest

of: (i) the closing price of the Company's shares as sfated in the Stock

Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant of an option,
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which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing price of the Company's
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant of an option; and {iii)

the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

No options have been granted under the Scheme since its adoption.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as the Scheme, the Company has not entered info other equity-linked

agreements during the year ended 30 April 2017.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the shares of the
Company. If the shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in

relation fo the shares of the Company, they are advised to consult an expert.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2017 have been audited
by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited. A resolution for the re-appointment as auditor

of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON WEBSITES

This annual report is available for viewing on the website of the Stock Exchange
at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of the Company at www tictactime.

com.hk.

By order of the Board

Lam Man Wah

Chairman

27 July 2017
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEkEREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Man Wah (#3X#), aged 54, is the leading founder of our
Group, chairman of our Board, chief executive officer and an executive Director.
He is responsible for the overall strategic planning and corporate policies as
well as overseeing the operations of our Group. He is also a director of each
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Lam brings to our Group over 22 years of
experience in the watch refail industry. Before founding our Group, he was one
of the proprietors of Kwun Tong Woodley Sports Company (B $&/& 1825 F &
A7A]). He was one of the proprietors of Ching Wah Watch Co (f&ZE8£1T)
which is principally engaged in the refailing of waiches, and then become the
sole propriefor of it. He had been a director of Yu Xing long Waitch Company
Limited which is principally engaged in the refail of watches in Macau. Since
July 2010, Mr. lam is a shareholder of Timeless Holder China Limited which is
principally engaged in the wholesale distribution of watches under selfowned
brands in Hong Kong and Macau. Mr. lam completed his secondary education
in China in 1979. Mr. Lom is the spouse of Ms. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa.

Ms. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa (BRE%), aged 45, is one of the founders of our
Group and our executive Director. She is responsible for management of human
resources and administration of our Group. She is also a director of Tic Tac Time
Company Limited. Ms. Chan has over 17 years of work experience in human
resources matters which was gained from the operation of our Group. Ms. Chan
completed her secondary education in Hong Kong in 1991. Ms. Chan is the
spouse of Mr. Lam Man Wah.

Mr. Tsang Hok Man (& 217), aged 46, is our executive Director. He is
responsible for overall operation and review processes of our Group. He was a
director of Sun Step Asia limited from August 2006 to June 2009. Mr. Tsang
has over 15 years of work experience in the watch retail industry which was
gained from working in our Group. He first joined us in July 1997 and until
March 2001 as a shop manager, mainly responsible for merchandising,
supervising and retail management, and re-joined us as a general manager

mainly responsible for overall management and operation of our retail outlets

since November 2003. Mr. Tsang complefed his secondary education in
1987.

HITES

MIERE 5455 BRAKBENTEAIMA -
EZEIR TRAHRANTEE REAE
BEBRAIARAABREAREBARAEENE
B-BRNARADRBEMBRANESR - ML
ERAEEFRBBLFNERTETEL
Bo-REPAKERN RWABBEHNEEAR
RAZEBAZ— - BRBERT(EERSE
BETE)ZHEBEAZ — AREBRKBENE
—HBEA REETHEERETAERIFAN
BEE HIZRNRMNFERTE -5 -_F—
FELAE MAELERCHADNTEAR
RAZER EXTEREBRBMREAR
miE AR BEDHE - MEER-NENF
ERBEZRTERR - MAEERREEL LT
RS -

REBRLT 45H REAKBEAIRAZ —FF
HITES RAEREBRAKREANERET
B RTAREERZKARARNES - R L
ARZEAEEMEANEREESTERET
BRI7VEFNTHELR RV - h—F
EERATKTBERBE MR AMXERE
HBCHS -

BEXLE 465 REMANNTESZ KA
ERASENBRELENREHNREF RIANZ
ZERFNAZE_ZETNFAAEERES
MEBRARMESE - BEERARNAEERER
MRERTETERBBRISFONTIELR-
BR—NAALFLAERMAZM E-F
T-F-_ANEEREHLE TERER
B EENTEERE YA_ZET=F+—A
REMMALM ERELE T2A8TE
EOERERREE - BAER - NANLEF
TR BRE -




Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chong Man Leung (X %), aged 50, was appointed as independent
non-executive Director on 7 October 2016. He is chairman of our Remuneration
Committee and a member of each of our Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee. He is a pracfising certified public accountant in Hong Kong. He has
been o managing partner of Kelvin Chong & Partners, Certified Public
Accountants (Practising] since May 2000, principally engaged in the provision
of a variety of professional services including assurance, taxation and corporate
consultant. He was admitied as a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in January 2000, a member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants since April 1999, a member of The Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors in December 2002 and a Certified Tax Adviser
registered in The Taxafion Institute of Hong Kong in May 2010. Mr. Chong
received an honours diploma in accountancy from Shue Yan University in Hong
Kong in 1989 and a professional diploma in corporate governance &
directorship from Hong Kong Productivity Council & The Hong Kong Institute of
Direcfors in Hong Kong in April 2010.

Mr. Fung Tat Man (3£ 3X), aged 50, was appointed as independent non-
executive Director on 21 April 2015. He is chairman of our Audit Committee
and o member of each of our Nomination Commitiee and Remuneration
Committee. He is a practising certified public accountant in Hong Kong. He
was an audit manager of Kelvin Chong & Partners from April 2008 1o August
2011. He has been a partner of United CPA & Co., principally engaged in the
provision of a variety of services including auditing, accounting, taxation,
corporate secretarial and management consultant since January 2012. Mr. Fung
received a bachelor's degree in social sciences from The University of Hong

Kong in Hong Kong in December 1990.

Mr. Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie (E®EE) oged 48, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director on 21 April 2015. He is chairman of our
Nomination Committee and a member of each of our Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Lo is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and has
accumulated over 20 years of experience in various areas of law including
litigation, commercial and intellectual property. He was admitted to practise law
as a solicitor in Hong Kong in September 1994. He has been the founding
partner of Au Yeung, lo & Chung, Solicitors (BXFZ - & - $&/2A07T) since
January 1998. He has been an appointed civil celebrant of marriages in Hong
Kong since June 2011. Mr. lo was a member of the Panel of Adjudicators of
the Obscene Articles Tribunal from September 2004 to September 2013 and
an adjudicator of the Immigration Tribunal from October 2007 o April 2014.
He has been a member of the Appeal Panel (Housing) since April 2012 and a
member of the Fishermen Claims Appeal Board since June 2013. Mr. lo
received a bachelor's degree in law from The University of Hong Kong in Hong
Kong in November 1991,
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEhaREREERE (&)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheung Hing Cheong, aged 44, is our Chief Business Officer and is
mainly responsible for the management of our wholesale business and our
marketing activities. Mr. Cheung joined our Group in January 2015. M.
Cheung has over 10 years of experience in the wholesale business of consumer
goods. Mr. Cheung received a bachelor degree in computer studies from City
University of Hong Kong. Before joining us, he assumed various management
posifions in several mulfi-national companies such as Mikli Asia Limited, the
Swatch Group (Hong Kong] Limited and DKSH Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Chau Chung Fai, aged 42, is our Retail Operation Manager and is
mainly responsible for coordinating operations within our Group and the
business development of a watch brand. Mr. Chau joined our Group in
November 201 1. Before joining us, he assumed various management positions
in some wellknown companies including Hutchison Telecommunications (Hong
Kong) Limited, Pizza Hut Hong Kong Management ltd and City Chain Co. ltd.

Mr. Chau received a diploma in business management in Hong Kong in 2001.

Mr. Kam Tang Kai, aged 35, is our Refail Operation Manager and is
mainly responsible for managing our retail business and the business
development of a watch brand. Mr. Kam joined our Group in April 2008.
Before joining us, he assumed various positions in some wellknown companies
including City Chain Co. lid. and Easy Winner Development Limited. He
received a continuing education certificate in general studies, Yi Jin Programme
from City University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in 2008.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Siu Wah was appointed as the Company Secrefary of the
Company on 11 November 2015 and is responsible for the company
secrefarial functions of the Company. Mr. Cheung is an associate member of
both the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrator. He also held senior management

posifions in various multinational companies and has been working in the

management, finance, accounting and administration sectors for over 25 years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to ensuring a high standard of corporate governance
in the inferests of the shareholders and devotes considerable effort to maintain
high level of business ethics and corporate governance practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Throughout the year ended 30 April 2017, the Company has adopted the code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Goveming the Listing of Securities [the “Listing Rules”)
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Board
considers that the Company was in compliance with all applicable code
provisions sef out in the CG Code during the year under review, except for
certain deviafions as specified with considered reasons for such deviations as
explained below. The Board will keep reviewing and updating such practices
from fime to time to ensure compliance with legal and commercial standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating strafegies, monitoring
performance and managing risks of the Group. At the same fime, it also has the
duty to enhance the effectiveness of the corporate governance practices of the
Group. The Company has set up three Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. All
these commitiees perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective
terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising certain functions of the

senior management.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTOR

The Group had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Direcfors
of listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 fo the listing Rules (the "Model
Code"). The Company had made specific enquiry to all of the Direcfors and the
Directors have confirmed compliance with the Model Code during the vyear
under review. No incident of noncompliance was noted by the Company for
the above period.

SREABE

ARRERRNFGSE ARABRNNERSE
ENEEER ARARERBNEFS KT
EBBRREEERER -

TRERER

RBEBE-_ZE-—LtFOA=FTRLFE £2
FAERMBEEBARSIMAR QA (HR
@S EWARAT ETmRAD) M EI457 8
ZzhEERTATRFERTD 25 RIME
XN -BEFXZRAR ROBFEAR ARFCDE
SEXERTAMBZMBEEM AR
HTXM@EEE TCEARIN KRB K
ShoBEERBBETHRIRENZEER
AR AERMBERER -

ERERRE

EESIEAAAREZRBBIAT REE
ELEBRERE - RN HTERERAAKE
CEELBERKM  RARERI=BES
ZBg NEZZES FMZESRRESRZ
B MAZTZEEHRBRFEAZR
REEBETESENRE YWHBHEFTEER
BEaMERB A TR

ESETESRINEETH

AEBEERMBLETRAMEIOmEE 2 £ E
TAEFETEFRZNFEETUN(HFEET
) - ARFRIEAEZBEFFLAREH M
EESCHANDBEFEA—BEETRET
Ao X EUEARM A AR R Y |EREMER
=t

ERATT2 2 F-1 T

I -



[
o

£10¢ Hoday [pnuuy  pajjwi] Auodwo?) sBuipjop [puoypuisiul o0] Off

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At present, the Board comprises six Directors as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Man Wah (Chairman and chief executive officer)
Ms. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa
Mr. Tsang Hok Man

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chong Man Leung (appointed on 7 October 20106)
Mr. Cheng Kin Chung (resigned on 7 Ocfober 2016)
Mr. Fung Tat Man

Mr. Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie

List of directors and their roles and functions are available on the websites of
Company and the Stock Exchange. Biographical details of the Directors are set
out in the section of "Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 32 fo 34. Save for Mr. Lam Man Wah, chairman of the Board of the
Company, is the spouse of Ms. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa, an executive Director of the
Company, there are no family or other material relationships among members of
the Board.

The Board has the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company.
They are collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Group by
directing and supervising the Group's affairs. The Board is accountable to
shareholders for the strategic development of the Group with the goal of
maximizing long- term shareholder value, while balancing broader stakeholder
inferests. The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the financial
and operafing performance, and considering and approving the overall

strafegies and policies of the Company.

Pursuant fo code provision C.1.2 of the CG Code, management should provide
all members of the board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company's performance, position and
prospects in sufficient defail.

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, at least four regular Board
meetings should be held each year at approximately quarterly intervals with

active participation of a majority of the Directors, either in person or through
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

other electronic means of communication. The Board will schedule at least four
regular meefings in a year. However, the Board may also hold meetings with
less than 14 days' notice as required for regular meetings under Code Provision
A.1.3, it may also pass resolutions by circulation of documents if considered

appropriate.

All of the Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secrefary who is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied
with and advising the Board on compliance matters. The Directors are also
provided with access to independent professional advice, where necessary, in
carrying out their obligations as the Directors of the Company, af the expense of
the Company. Directors who are considered to have conflict of inferests or
material interesfs in the proposed fransactions or issues to be discussed would
not be counted in the quorum of meeting and would abstain from voting on the

relevant resolutions.

All of the Directors assume the responsibilities owed to the shareholders of the
Company for the wellbeing and success of the Company. They are aware of

their duties to act in good faith and in the best inferests of the Company.

The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting records so as fo
enable the Directors to monitor the Company's overall financial position. The
Board updates shareholders on the operations and financial position of the
Group through, half vearly and annual results announcements as well as the
publication of timely announcements of other matters as prescribed by the

relevant rules and regulations.

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors, at least one of
whom has appropriate financial management expertise, in comphcmce with the
Listing Rules. Each of the independent non-executive Director has made an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company has assessed the independence of all of the independent
non-executive Directors and considered that all of the independent non-executive
Director meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

During the year, the Company had arranged appropriate insurance cover in

respect of legal action against the Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TLEERRS (B)

TR BZEFRAE_FT—EtFOA=T
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RZBegs FHZBEeeRRERZER

in the following table: e HEH

The attendance record of each Director at Board meeting, Annual General
meeting, Audit Committee meeting, Remuneration Committee meeting and
Nomination Committee meefing during the year ended 30 April 2017 is sef out

No. of Meetings Attended/Held

HE BITERRE
Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual
Name of Directors Board Committee = Committee Committee  General
IR R
EEng Exg ERZEE FMHZEEE REZEETY BFKE
38
B Executive Directors HITES
g. Mr. Lam Man Wah MXERE 5/5 N/AT@ER N/ATER  N/ATER 1/1
< Ms. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa REmELT 5/5 N/A T N/ATER  N/ATER 1/1
2 Mr. Tsang Hok Man B St 5/5 N/AT@EA  N/ATEA N/ATEA 1/1
5]
Z‘__r Independent non-executive BIFEHITESE
& Directors
o Mr. Chong Man leung (Note 1) HEX =54 (Kat]) 2/5 2/3 0/2 0/2 0/1
;ﬁ Mr. Cheng Kin Chung (Nofe 2) 8Bz 5c & (Bt aE2) 2/5 1/3 1/2 1/2 1/1
= Mr. Fung Tat Man BEX S 5/5 2/3 2/2 2/2 1/1
2 Mr. Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie ERELE 5/5 2/3 2/2 2/2 1/1
é’ Nofe 1:  Mr. Chong Man leung was appoinfed on 7 October 2016 and that he was ~ Mfatl - HX A ER T —~F+ At A #E
§ ineligible to attend those meetings that held before his appointment. ZE AUBRTHEEREEEREZEA
_g BTz %%58% -
% Note 2: Mr. Cheng Kin Chung was absent from one of the audit committee meefing due ~ A75t2: BEFEERABREHFE —NEZZE
S fo his business engagement and he was ineligible to attend other meefings that BEE MEIAHEGEREREABTR

held affer his resignation.

Code Provision of A.2.7 of the CG Code requires the chairman of the Board fo
hold meetings at least annually with the non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Direcfors) without the executive Directors present.
During the year under review, Mr. lam Man Wah was the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer of the Company. The Company has

deviated from this code provision as it is not practicable.

All Directors are provided with details of agenda items for decisions making with
reasonable nofice and welcome to include matters in the agenda of Board
meeting. Minutes of Board meefings and meetings of Board committees are kept

by Company Secretary and are Opg—:_néd for inspection as request by Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision of A.2.1 of the CG Code, the role of the chairman and
chief executive officer should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. The post of chairman and chief executive officer are separated
fo ensure a clear division between the chairman’s responsibility to manage the
Board and the chief executive officer’s responsibility 1o manage the Company’s
business. The separation ensures a balance of power and authority so that

power is not concentrated.

During the year under review, the Company has not separated the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Lam Man Wah was
the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company. In
view of Mr. lam Man Wah was the leading founder of the Group and has
been operating and managing the Group since 1997, the Board believes that it
is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. lam Man Wah taking up both
roles for effective management and business development. Therefore, the Board
considers that the deviafion from the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is
appropriate in such circumstances. Nevertheless, the Company will look for
suifable candidates and will make necessary arrangement pursuant fo the

requirement under A.2.1 of CG Code as and when necessary.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors of the Company has enfered info a service
contract with the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing on 12
May 2015 and either the executive Director or the Company may ferminate the
agreement by giving the other party not less than three months’ notice in writing

or b\/ moking a payment of three months'’ so|0ry in lieu of the notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has enfered into a service
contract with the Company for a specific term of three years but subject to
fermination in certain circumstances as sfipulated in the relevant service confracts.
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meefing has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Audit Committee is responsible for performing corporate governance duties

and has adopted the written terms of reference on ifs corporate govermnance

functions. The duties of the Audit Commitiee in respect of the corporate

governance functions include:

(a)

(b]

B
o

(c)

(d)

le]
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developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practfices on

corporate governance and make recommendations fo the Board;

reviewing and monitoring the training and  continuous  professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Company and ifs
subsidiaries;

reviewing and moniforing the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors of the

Company and its subsidiaries;

reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code in Appendix 14
fo the Listing Rules and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report;
and

doing any such things to enable the Audit Committee to discharge ifs

powers and funcfions conferred on it by the Board.

During the year ended 30 April 2017, the Board has performed the corporate

governance duties in accordance with ifs ferms of reference.
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Corporate Governance Re

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee in accordance with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules pursuant to a resolution of the Directors passed on 21 April
2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with paragroph C.3 of the
CG Code as set ouf in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The terms of reference

are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee, among other things, are (i) fo make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and the ferms of the
auditors; (i) to review and monifor the external audifor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standard; (iii) to review the financial statements and material advice
in respect of financial reporting; (iv) to oversee internal control procedures of the
Company; and (v) fo report to the Board on the matters set out in the code

provisions as stated in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 30 April 2017, the Audit Committee held three meetings.
Defails of the affendance of the members of the Audit Committee in the said
meefing are set out on page 38. The Audit Commitiee reviewed the Group's
annual results and annual report for the year ended 30 April 2017, the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, the Company's infernal control and risk
management systfems and processes, and the re-appointment of the exfternal

auditfor.

The Audit Committee comprises three members as at the date of this report,

namely:

Mr. Fung Tat Man (Chairman)
Mr. Chong Man Leung
Mr. Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie

Al the members are independent nonexecutive Directors (including one
independent non-executive Direclor who possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise). None of
the members of the Audit Commitiee is a former partner of the Company's

existing external audifor.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TLEERRS (B)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company esfablished a Remuneration Committee in accordance with Rule 3.25
of the Listing Rules pursuant to a resolution of the Directors passed on 21 April
2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1 of the
CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 fo the Listing Rules. The ferms of reference

are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee reviews the performance and remuneration
package of the executive Direcfors, independent non-executive Directors and
senior management, and makes appropriate recommendations to the Board.
Staff remuneration is determined by the Group’s management by reference to the
individual staff's qualifications, work experience, performance and prevailing

market conditions.

During the year ended 30 April 2017, the Remuneration Committee held two
meefing. Defails of the attendance of the members of the Remuneration
Committee in the said meefing are set out on page 38.

The Remuneration Commitiee comprises three members as at the date of this

report, namely:

Mr. Chong Man leung (Chairman)
Mr. Fung Tat Man
Mr. Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie

All of the current members are independent non-executive Directors.
In addition, pursuant to the Code Provision B.1.5, the annual remuneration of

the member of the senior management by band for the year ended 30 April
2017 is set out below:

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant to a resolution of
the Directors passed on 21 April 2015 with writtlen ferms of reference in
compliance with paragraph A.5 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 fo
the Listing Rules. The terms of reference are available on the websites of the

Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Nomination Commitiee, among other things, are (i) to
review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually, make recommendations to the Board
regarding appointment of Directors and candidates to fill vacancies on the
Board; (i) to review the board diversity policy; [iii) to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become members of the Board and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship; (iv] to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and (v) to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating fo the appointment or re-appointment of Direcfors and succession
p\onning for Directors in porﬁcu|or the chairman of the Board and the chief

execufive officer of the Company.

During the year ended 30 April 2017, the Nomination Commitiee held two
meeting. Details of the attendance of the members of the Nomination Committee

in the said meefing are set out on page 38.

The Nomination Commitiee comprises three members as af the date of this

report, namely:
Mr. Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie (Chairman)

Mr. Chong Man Leung
Mr. Fung Tat Man

All of the current members are independent non-executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
tEERRE (E)

BOARD DIVERSITY

During the year, the Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) setting
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered
diversity of board members can be achieved through consideration of a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the

Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be
made upon the merits and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

On recommendation from the Nomination Committee, the Board will set
measurable objectives to implement the Policy and review such objectives from
fime fo time fo ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives. The Nomination Committee will review the

Policy, as appropriafe, o ensure its continued effectiveness from time fo fime.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Audit Committee reviews the adequacy of the Group's internal financial
controls, operational and compliance controls, and risk management policies
and systems established by the management of the Company (collectively “infernal
controls”).

The risk management and infernal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.

For the year ended 30 April 2017, the Board has conducted a review and
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company's risk management and infernal
control systems including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. Such review have been made by discussion with the Audit
Committee, management and external auditors of the Company from time to
fime, but af least once a yeor:'-:-Tﬂ_hé Board will put in place to address the
identified area that shall be enhanced. The Board considered that the existing

risk management and internal control systems are adequate and effective.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The Company also has an internal audit function to carry out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems, and
has procedures in place to keep information confidential and manage actual or
potential conflicts of interest. Stringent infernal structures have been designed to

prevent the misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of inferest.

The Audit Commitiee has received the summarized information on the risk
management and infernal confrols that conducted by the internal audit team. The

work carried in relating fo the identified areas are summarized as follow:

[} the results of selective testing of internal control procedures, assets, and

financial records of the Company;

[i) @ general evaluation of risk management and internal control systems

installed by the Company; and

[ii)  an outline of major control issues, if any, noficed during the year under

review.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the reports and discussed with the

management.

The Board is responsible for the overall internal control framework and is fully
aware of the need to put in place a system of internal controls within the Group
fo safeguard the interests of the Company’s shareholders and the Group's assets,
and to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems on a regular basis to ensure that the sysfems in place are

adequate.

CHANGE IN AUDITORS

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 27 April 2017 in
relation fo the change of auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers has resigned as the
auditor of the Company on 27 April 2017. On the same date, the Board
appointed Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited to fill the casual vacancy as the auditor

of the Company until the conclusion of the annual general meeting.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The sftatement of the external auditor of the Company on his reporting
responsibiliies and opinion on the Group's financial statements for the year
ended 30 April 2017 is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s
Report” in this annual report.

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering the
appoiniment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit functions
performed by the external auditor, including whether such non-audit functions

could lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Company.

For the year ended 30 April 2017, the fees paid/payable to Baker Tilly Hong
Kong Llimited, the external auditor of the Company for audit services were
HK$542,000. There is no non-audit services fee paid to the external auditor of
the Company. Fees paid fo other auditor were approximately HK$29,000.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements for
each financial year which gives a frue and fair view. In preparing the financial
statements, appropriate accounting policies and sfandard are selected and

applied consistently.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue
as a going concemn. The Directors believe that the financial statements are

prepared on a going concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, Mr. Cheung Siuv Wah is the Company Secretary of the
Company. He is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are followed
and for facilitating communications among Direcfors as well as with shareholders
and management. During the year ended 30 April 2017, Mr. Cheung took no

less than 15 hours of the relevant professional training.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is a key fo
enhancing investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open and timely

disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and investment public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business developments and
financial performance through its annual and interim reports. The corporate
website of the Company (www fictactime.com.hk) has provided an effective

communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES
DOCUMENT

IN CONSTITUTIONAL

During the year ended 30 April 2017, the Company has not made any change
fo its constitutional documents. A consolidated version of the Company's
constitutional documents is available on the Company's website and the website
of the Stock Exchange.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Company provides relevant training and relevant reading materials fo
Direcfors to help ensure that they are apprised of the lafest changes in the
commercial, legal and regulatory environment in which the Group conducis ifs
business and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and as

director of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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During the year, the directors participated the following training:

Name of Directors

BEEpnR

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. lam Man Wah M S

Ms. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa REEz L

Mr. Tsang Hok Man BEXEE
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Cheng Kin Chung Bzt g

Mr. Chong Man leung HExXmfdE

Mr. Fung Tat Man ISEX R E

Mr. Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie ERAELAE

A — reading materials given by the Company relating to the Company's businesses

and regular updates on the Llisting Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements relevant fo director’s duties and responsibilities

B — attending briefings/seminars/conferences/forums relevant to director’s duties and
responsibilities

C — reading newspapers and journals relating to corporate governance matters,
environment and social issues or director’s duties and responsibilities

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The Company has adopted shareholders communication policy with objective fo
provide our shareholders with detailed information about the Company so that
they can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner. The
Company would review the shareholders communication policy on a regular
basis.

The Company uses a range of communication fools to ensure its shareholders
are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These include annual general
meeting, annual report, various notices, announcements and circulars. Procedure
for demanding a poll will be included in circulars accompanying notice
convening a general meeting and such procedure will be read out by the
chairman of the general meeting or his delegate. The annual general meeting
and other general meetings jof the Company are primary forum for

communication between the Compaty and its shareholders. The members of the
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Board, Board commitiees and the external auditor are present to answer
shareholders’ questions at the annual general meeting of the Company. The
Company shall provide shareholders with relevant information on the resolution(s)
proposed af a general meeting in a timely manner in accordance with the Listing
Rules. The information provided shall be reasonably necessary to enable
shareholders to make an informed decision on the proposed resolution(s). As a
channel to promote effective communication, the Group maintains a website
where information on the Company’s announcements, financial information and
other information are posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to
the Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong with any inquiries.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE
AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions af the
general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2012 Revision).
However, shareholders are requested to follow article 58 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, general meetings shall be convened on the written
requisition of any one or more members holding af the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the secrefary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meetfing to be called by the Board for the
fransaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meefing shall
be held within two (2) months affer the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed fo the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE
A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for elecfion as a Director
of the Company are laid down in Article 85 of the Company’s Arficles of
Association. No person other than a Director refiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director
at any general meefing unless a Notice signed by a Member (other than the
person fo be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for

which such notice is given of his intention to propose such person for election
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and also a Notice signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be
elected shall have been lodged at the head office or at the Registration Office
provided that the minimum length of the period, during which such noficels) are
given, shall be af least seven (7] days and that [if the Notices are submitted after
the despafch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election)
the period for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after the
despaich of the nofice of the general meefing appointed for such election and

end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meefing.

Defailed procedures for shareholders o propose a person for election as a
Direcfor are available on the Company’s website.

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the attention of
11/F, Tower 1, China Hong Kong
City, China Ferry Terminal, Canton Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

company secrefary, by mail to Suite No. 9,

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules, and
publishes periodic reports and announcements fo the public in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of the Company is to ensure
information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby
enabling shareholders, investors as well as the public to make rafional and

informed decisions.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure an
effective distribution of the resources and shareholders’ inferests. The senior
management will continue endeavors in maintaining, enhancing and increasing

the Group's corporate governance level and quality.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

":1)
BAKER TILLY

HONG KONG | Kt

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Tic Tac International Holdings Company Limited
REERERERD A

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tic Tac Infernational
Holdings Company Llimited and its subsidiaries (fogether the “Group”) set out on
pages 58 fo 123, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 April 2017, and the consolidated sfatement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated sfatement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial sfatements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 April 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
["HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
["HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
["HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial stafements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
"Code’), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

1.

Valuation of inventories

FEEE

FARESTEEm

Reference should be made to notes 2.9 and 4(a) to the consolidated financial statements for the Group's accounting policies and

crifical accounting estimates and judgements and to note 14 to the consolidated financial statements for detailed disclosures.

AR
T o

LR E MWK 29k EXEHE

The key audit matter
BRESBR

The balance of inventories is significant to the consolidated
financial statements. Assessing and defermining the extent of any
provision for slow-moving inventories involves a significant degree

of management judgement.

FEEBYGAMBBRRBEEN - FEREEFAHEER
R AE R IB A TR 08 N1 B TR 8 I -

In estimating the amount of provision for slow-moving inventories,
it is the Group's policy fo review the net realisable value of
inventories periodically with reference to ageing status, the
condition of the items and market conditions. These assessments
are subject fo uncerfainties arising from changes in market frends,

in customer tastes and from actfions by competitors.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMMAREFPEEZSEE

Our audit procedures included:

i assessing management’s processes in their review and
evaluation of the net realisable value of inventories,
including reference to information relafing to subsequent
sales;

®  examining the basis of management policy relating to

provision for slow-moving inventories policy;

®  assessing assumpfions and estimates applied by
management in their determining the provision for slow-

moving inventories; and

®  festing, on a sample basis, the validity of ageing profiles
for inventories by checking to underlying purchase

documentation and evidence.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

2.

Provision for onerous operating leases

B = BED RS (8)

FARETEEm

EERETHERR

Reference should be made fo notes 2.18 and 4(e) to the consolidated financial statements for the Group's accounting policies and

crifical accounting estimates and judgements and to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements for detailed disclosures.
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The key audit matter
BRBESEE

The Group has entered info several operating lease contracts for
its retail outlets. At the end of each reporting period management
performs assessments of the lease confracts for refail outlets with
non-cancellable elements in order to identify any provision for
onerous operating leases, including any unavoidable costs of
meeting lease obligations which may exceed economic benefits
fo be received. Based on their best estimates, management is of
the view that a provision of HK$8,598,000 should be
recognised as at 30 April 2017

SECATERHUZEKEHESN RERSE
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Management's assessments and esfimates involve a number of
key bases, including:

o cash flow forecasts, which are derived from internal
forecasts and management’s assumptions relating to future

performance; and

J discount rates and longterm growth rates including

assessments of risk factors and growth expectations.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMNOMAREATEEZEE

Our audit procedures included:

e checking the reliability and relevance of data used by
management fo estimate the unavoidable costs relating

to lease contracts;

e assessing key assumptions used by management based
on our assessment of the business conditions and

expectations in the retail watch business;

®  considering the potential effect of reasonably possible

changes in management's key assumptions; and
o assessing the reasonableness of any provision for
onerous operating leases by comparing estimations and

actual results with reference to the subsequent

performance of retail outlets.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
%_LV%Z il ¥ & (48)

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
_I;_:_Il\éﬁlglgwl STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our audifor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statfements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability fo continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis
of accounting unless the directors either infend to liquidate the Group or fo cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with govemance are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtfain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and tfo issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely fo you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional skepficism throughout the audit. We also:

—  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due fo fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive fo those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intenfional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
fo design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effecfiveness of the

Group's internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

B = BED RS (8)
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
Bz B S ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concem basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exisfs, we are required
fo draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, fo
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence

[0
o

obtained up fo the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group fo cease to continue as a going concern.

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, sfructure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying fransactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the enfities or business activities within the Group fo express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. VWe are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We

remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought fo bear on our independence, and where opplicable, related

safeguards.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemnance, we
defermine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statfements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 July 2017

Tong Wai Hang

Practising Certificate Number P06231
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ReEaRkAEtEZERKER

For the year ended 30 April 20177 BE—_Z—+FWMA=+HILFE

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

[*4
©o

Other gains/(losses), net
Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Operating loss

Finance costs

Loss before income tax

Income tax credit/(expense)

Loss for the year

£10¢ Hoday [pnuuy  pajjwi] Auodwo?) sBuipjop [puoypuisiul o0] Off

Other comprehensive income

ER

Hit ez (B1R) 558

HERDHERA

TR X

REER

BRATEHATE R

FrisBiE %,/ (F%)

Total comprehensive loss for the year FEZMHEEASH

Basic and diluted loss per share

(HK cents per share)

The notes on pages 63 to 123 are in integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

s (L

BREAXARBHEER
(8 R EAL)

2017

—E—tE

Note HK$’000
[Fea F#T

5 283,211
7 (192,893)
90,318

6 9
7 (102,817)
7 (15,627)
(28,117)
9 (441)
(28,558)

10 867
(27,691)
(27,691)
12 (3.46)

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FHT
321,322

(206,434)

114,888
(489)
(105,411)

(20,479

(11,4971)

(667)

(12,158)

(491)

(12,649)

(12,649

(1.59)

FOEIVAZMERREFRAYBHRERD
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deposits and prepayments

Deferred income tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables, other receivables and
prepayments

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

e B IR R

As af 30 April 2017 RZZE—+FHA=+H

Note
Mt ax
BE
kRBEE
e N 13
& R RIE 16
BIEFTSMEE 20
RBEE
FE 14
JEUWE 5 5k1E
o W sk IR R TR A BOR 16
A Uk 6] % 18
ReFREEED 17
wEE
Ea
AAREBEAEERESR
N 18
15
R

2017
—E—tF
HK$’000
FTHET

6,258
12,643
2,989

21,890

97,893

7,442
7,800
37,071

150,206

172,096

8,000
122,912

130,912

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FHT

14,239
11,619
2,545

28,403

118,005

7,939
6,904
41,774

174,622

203,025

8,000
150,603

158,603
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

AR (E)

As at 30 April 2017 R=ZZF—+FMA=+H

LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Provision for other liabilities and charges HwaBEhEREE
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMSHAE
Borrowings &K
60
=
=
s Current liabilities nRBEE
3 Trade and other payables B 5 K& H Ath f& 5/ IE
2 Borrowings fa
z Current income tax liabilities ENERFR1S M B (&
o
@
g
3
S
~
2 Total liabilities mEE
Q.
=>
2 Total equity and liabilities BERREE
=
3
N The nofes on pages 63 to 123 are an integral part of these consolidated
% financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 123 were approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 27 July 2017 and were signed on its behalf.

Lam Man Wah
M E

.. Director

FF

H ,

1T iR

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ft it TEx FET
21 1,653 3,020
20 = 538
22 202 438
1,855 3,996

21 23,451 22,679
22 15,811 17,029
67 718

39,329 40,426

41,184 44,422

172,096 203,025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Balance af 1 May 2015

Total comprehensive loss

Loss for the year

Total contributions by and
distributions to owners
of the Company,
recognised directly
in equity

Capitalisation issue of shares
(Note 18(b))

Shares issued pursuant fo the
Public Offer (Note 18(a))

Transaction cosfs affributable fo

the Public Offer (Note 18(a))

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 30 April 2016
and 1 May 2016

Total comprehensive loss

Loss for the year

Balance at 30 April 2017

GEEREDR

For the year ended 30 April 2017 BEZZ—+FMOA=+RHIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRBEEAEMN
Share Share Capital Accumulated Total
Capital premium reserve  profits/(losses) equity
BA  ROBE EAHE RIOBR (BB BmRER
[Note 19)
(Kt 19)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THET TET THET TET TET
RZTE—hF
AA—BR&EH ] = 24,094 20,790 44,885
2HEBRERE
FEEE - — — (12,649)  (12,649)
ARBEAEATER
D KEE B
ERERER
Mt B R B AT
(K1 5% 18(b)) 5,099 (5,999 = — —
RIBARMEEETR
3 (Mt &t 18(a)) 2,000 134,000 = — 136,000
NHEBEEMEER S
A (B 52 18(a)) = (2,633) = = (9,633)
HEGARSHERE 7,999 118,368 = — 126,367
RZZE—RF
MA=+HE
—E-REF
hA—BE&EH 8,000 118,368 24,094 8,141 158,603
2HEBEESE
FEEE - - — (27,691)  (27,691)
R-ZE—+F
MA=+EMER 8000 118368 24,094 (19,550) 130,912

The notes on pages 63 to 123 are an infegral part of these consolidated  Z63F123B 2T AR ZEHRAVBRET

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEHRETRER

For the year ended 30 April 2017 BZ—_Z—+FMA=1+HILFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash generated from/(used in) operations
Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Net change in balances with shareholders

of the Company
Proceeds from inception of a finance lease

Repayment of principal elements
of a finance lease

Inferest paid

Payment of listing expenses

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents af beginning
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year
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CR ), /18 % 58
FONNRERAEEEY

FANRERREESEY

The notes on pages 63 to 123 are an infegral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

(FR)BREFE

2017

—E—tF

Note HK$’000
K et FET

24 145
(1,664)

(1,519)

(1,289)

(1,289)

22,236
(23,461)

(229)
(441)

(1,895)

(4,703)

41,774

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
F# T

(12,961)
(8,782)

(21,743)

(7,192)

100

(7,092)

126,367
28,138
(88,490)
(15,042
755
(88

(667)
(2,368

48,599

19,764

22,010



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Tic Tac International Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 23 June 2014 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (law 3
of 19061,
Company's registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries,
(fogether the “Group”), are principally engaged in the retail and

wholesale of watches in Hong Kong.

The Company has listed its shares on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong limited since 12 May 2015 (the “listing”). In
connection with the public offer completed on 12 May 2015, the
Company issued a fotal of 200,000,000 shares at a price of HK$0.68
per share for a tofal proceeds [before the related fees and expenses) of

HK$ 136,000,000 (the “Public Offer”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollars ("HK$") unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial stafements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied fo all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial

statements have been prepared under the hisforical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of cerfain crifical accounting esfimates. It also
requires management fo exercise ifs judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EXEFHEBRE@
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 REEXE @)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

o
H
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(a) Going concern basis

During the year ended 30 April 2017, the Group incurred a
net loss of HK$27,691,000 and had a net operating cash
oufflow of HK$1,519,000. As at 30 April 2017, the Group
had total banking facilities of approximately
HK$76,120,000, of which approximately HK$ 15,575,000
were drawn down as bank borrowings. The Group's
banking facilities are subject to annual review for renewal
and cerfain covenant requirements. As at 30 April 2017, the
Group failed to comply with one of the covenant requirements
related fo the Group's banking facilities amounting o
HK$55,000,000, of which short term bank loans of
HK$5,504,000 was utilised as at 30 April 2017.

In July 2017, the bank granted an oneoff waiver from
compliance with the relevant breached covenant requirement
for the year ended 30 April 2017. The Group is also
negotiating with the bank to revise the covenant requirement
in order fo ensure contfinuous compliance of the covenant

requirements.

Notwithstanding these circumsfances, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group has
sufficient financial resources fo continue as a going concern.
The directors have reviewed the Group's cash flow
projections prepared by management covering a period of
twelve months from 30 April 2017. The directors have put in

place a number of measures to improve the Group's financial

performance. [,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PN S ETEAC )

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Going concern basis (Continued)

Based on the cash flow projections and taking into account
the anficipated cash flows generated from the Group's
operations, the possible changes in its operating
performance, and the confinuous availability of banking
facilities, the Group will have sufficient working capital to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
coming twelve months from 30 April 2017. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company consider that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial sfatements on a going

concemn basis.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The following amendments to standards have been adopted
by the Group for the financial year beginning on or after 1

May 2016:

Annual Improvements Project

FEUBEER

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

BASERNE 1R BB

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 {Amendments)

BEXRGHENE16H BB ER|
SE385% (BFT &)

The adoption of these amendments did not have any impact

on the current period or any prior period.

wiN 3 7

2. ERETHEBRE @)

2.1 mEEZE @)

(a)

(b)

Disclosure initiative
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Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle
R-F-—ZHFE_F-NFREMANFELE

Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EXREFBERBEw

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(Continued)

New accounting standards and

standards that are not yet effective and have not been early

adopted by the Group.

The following new standards and amendments to standards

o
o

Annual Improvements Project

FEMEER

£10¢ Hoday [pnuuy  pajjwi] Auodwo?) sBuipjop [puoypuisiul o0] Off

HKAS 7 (Amendments)
BB EUNETR(BFTR)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

ERGTERE 125 (BRI A)
HKFRS @
BEPBEHMEEAEOR
HKFRS 15
FAMBHRESEEI15H
HKFRS 16
FAMBHESERE 165

N

iy AL S B

have been issued but not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 May 2016, and have not been early adopted

in preparing these consolidated financial statements:

2.1 REEXE @)

(b) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures b) EFBERREE#
B ()
amendments fo existing AEBERERFERBEARE

MEFE] €t R KRB E

B Z 53T -

THFRTER R ERERTE
RZE-—XRFAA-HH
fH) I R B MR N R A
B MREEZEEE M

BRETRAERERM:

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 cycle

RZE—NMFE_T - FEBNEEVH
HE YR E BUE

Disclosure initiative

HEBHE

Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised
losses

HABRBIERRRELERIE

Financial instruments

EHITA

Revenue from contracts with customers

REEFPERHKR

leases

HE

‘“
W

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning

on or after

RIS BB ZEBSR
WEFHBEX

1 January 2017 or

1 January 2018
—E—tF—-A—-B%
—E-N\F—-A—H
1 January 2017
—E—t+F—A—H
1 January 2017
—E—tF—-HA—H
1 January 2018
—E-NF-A—H
1 January 2018
—ZT-N¥—-HA—H
1 January 2019
—F-h&—HA—H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

Management is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these new and revised standards is
expected fo be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. As the Group has not completed ifs
assessment, further impacts may be identified in due course
and will be taken into consideration when determining
whether to adopt any of these new requirements before their
effective date and which transitional approach fo take, where
there are allernative approaches allowed under the new

standards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

i L

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

HKFRS 16

As disclosed in Note 2.20, currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and accounts
for the lease arangements differently, depending on the
classification of the lease. The Group only enfers info leases
as the lessee. Once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no
longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance
lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the
lease the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability
at the present value of the minimum future lease payments
and will recognise a corresponding “rightofuse” asset. After
initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will
recognise inferest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the
rightof-use asset, instead of the current policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on a
systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical
expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting
model to shortterm leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12
months or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which
case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised on

a systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PN S ETEAC )

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for property, plant and equipment which are
currently classified as operafing leases. The application of
the new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase
in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of
the expense recognition in profit or loss over the period of the
lease. As disclosed in Note 23, as at 30 April 2017, the
majority of Group's future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are payable either within
one year or between one and five years after the reporting
date. Some of these amounts may therefore need to be
recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use
assefs, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will need fo
perform a more detailed analysis fo defermine the amounts of
new assets and liobilities arising from operating lease
commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, dfter taking into
account the applicability of the pracfical expedient and
adjusting for any leases entered info or terminated between
now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of

discounting.

The Group is considering whether to adopt HKFRS 16 before
its effective date of 1 January 2019. However, early
adoption of HKFRS 16 is only permitted if this is no earlier
than the adoption of HKFRS 15. It is therefore unlikely that
HKFRS 16 will be adopted before the effective date of
HKFRS 15, being 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2. Subsidiaries

(a)

(b)

1 (L

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group confrols an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
fo affect those retumns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred fo the Group. They are deconsolidated from the

date that control ceases.

Infra-group fransactions, balances and unrealised gains on
fransactions befween group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted fo

conform with the Group's accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity fransactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in
their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value
of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying amount of net assefs of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated anndolSkﬁemenb(Ckanued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

23

2.4

. Subsidiaries (Confinued)

(c) Separate financial statements
Investment in a subsidiary is accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct aftributable costs of
investment. The result of the subsidiary is accounted for by the

Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment fesfing of the investment in a subsidiary is required
upon receiving a dividend from this investment if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial siatements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements
of the investee's net assefs including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
infernal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operafing decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors of the

Company that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the consolidated financial statements of
each of the Group's entfities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates [the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$ which is the

Company's functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency fransactions are franslated info the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the fransactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the setlement of such fransactions and from the
franslation at yearend exchange rafes of monetary assefs
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognised in profit or loss within “other gains/(losses), net”.

fre WIS R T 5L ()

N

2. EXEFTHERME @)

2.2.

2.3

2.4

B BB 2 B ()

(c) B E
R B 2 A 2 R R AN
BORE AR A RERE
ZEBEEMERA - KRR A
MEARZ EEEERRE
Wi R B B o

fisf B B 8 1 B K IR B HI R %
MBARZZmMKEAE
sk fis B 5t B KR 2 R A BR
HEB D&M ERERAR
BRIRERAZEEFE(BRE
AR ZREE - BIZAR K
BERHZMBRARZRE

HEITIRE A, o
2 S

0 ER e IR E T A B R

Wéﬁ?&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ’]ﬁﬂ*ﬁ#&iﬁ/:*
ITERERRECHEERED
BRERRNARRNITES HE
AENEERLFGEREDMOR

o

h

R

INE]mE

(o) WEERZINEH
REEZEBZEEMB®R
KMBECEB DIEZE
BEEMEMNTELEIRE
WEE(HEEE D2
HEVBBRRIDUBILTE
- mAETAEARRBZTEE
BEBRAEB 25 E -

(b) XZK4ER
SINER PR HERZRIT
EXxBERNEEE -BH
FRARZREFREXBRE
NI EMNEBEERA
EFTEEMSNE s K B8
EATE S s (&)
REINRER -

ERATE S Fet [ E=1

I -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EXAEFHEME@

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 25 ME - -BERR®B
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Property, plant and equipment are stated at hisforical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment. Hisforical
cost includes expenditure that is directly affributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’” carrying amount or
recognised as a separate assef, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All ofher repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss

during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straightline method to allocate their costs fo their residual values,

where applicable, over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

leasehold improvements
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lease terms of 2 fo 5 years

HEWMEERE HEMBR2ESHF

Furniture and fixtures Shorter of lease term or 5 years
XEARKE HEMBISFE(UREE /L)
Office equipment 3 years

MAER 3F

Motor vehicles and yacht 5 years

YT N A 5%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, af the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to ifs
recoverable amount if the asset's carmying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.6).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carying, amount and are recognised as “other
gains/[losses), net” ingprofit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carying amount may nof be

recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by

which the asset's camying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less

costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing

impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there

are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-

financial assefs that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.7 Financial assets

(a)

(b)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets info loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of ifs financial assets at inifial

recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
acfive market. They are included in current assefs, except for
the amounts that are sefiled or expected to be setiled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans and
receivables comprise "deposits”, “frade receivables”, “other
receivables” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the
consolidated statement of financial position (Notes 2.10 and

2.11).

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits fo purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assefs not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assefs are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. loans and receivables are carried af amortised

cost using the effective inferest method.
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I\lofes fo the Conso|io|ofeo| Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

SHBERHME @

28 EMEERE

2.8 Impairment of financial assets
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The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that o financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event')
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that

can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in inferest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaulss.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows [excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. If
a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective inferest rate determined
under the confract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an insfrument’s fair value using
an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and.the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring  affer ~thel. _impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debior's credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
oN:
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Inventories

Inventories representing merchandise are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods comprises invoiced
cost less purchase rebates. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable

variable selling expenses.

2.10 Trade and other receivables

2.11

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less, they are classified

as current assefs. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

inferest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks

and bank overdrafts.

2.12 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are

shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.13 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as

non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective inferest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EXEFHEBRE@
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Borrowings 2.14 18R

N
o

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds [net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the

period of the borrowings using the effective inferest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabiliies unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer sefflement of the liability for at least

12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.15 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are charged to profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
income fax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except fo the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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(a) Current income tax (o) ENERFR1EH

BNEAFT B M B T RB AR
AMMBARKE NELE
ABWMARMEHBERRRE
HREEMXECELB/MGH
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax BMEstE - B EstE AR
BERBERENERAEH
FEmEmBMR REE
185 E A T8 HA 17) B4 75 # 28
XS BEELEE -

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company's

subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.

refurns with respect fo situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject fo interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected fo be

paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PN S ETEAC )

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assefs and liabilities and their carmying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax liabiliies are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income fax is not
accounted for if it arises from inifial recognition of an assef or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income fax is defermined
using tax rates [and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected fo apply when the related deferred income tax

asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is seftled.

Deferred income fax assets are recognised fo the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
tfemporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income fax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
only fo the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right fo offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
fax assefs and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
faxable entities where there is an infenfion to seffle the
balances on a nef basis.

2.17 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entiflements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue fo employees. A provision is made for the
esfimated liability for annual leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entiflements to sick leave and maternity or paternity

leaves are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group participates in a defined contribution plan. A
defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays confribufions, on a mandatory, confractual or
voluntary basis, into o separate entity. The scheme is
generally funded through payments to insurance companies
or state/trustee-administered funds. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
It has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the

current and prior periods.

The contributions are recognised as employment costs when
they are due. Prepaid confributions are-recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the

future payments is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cominued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Provision for bonus plans
Bonus payments to employees are discretionary to
management. Bonus payments are recognised in profit or
loss in the period when the Group has formally announced

the bonus payments fo employees.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
consiructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an oufflow of resources will be required fo settle the obligation; and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an oufflow will be required in seilement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as o whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any

one ifem included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected fo be required to sefile the obligation using a pretax rafe
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision

due fo passage of fime is recognised as inferest expense.

2.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied,
stated net of refurns and discounts. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow fo the enfity; and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's
activities, as described below. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking info consideration the type of customer, the

type of fransaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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Notes to the Conso|io|ofeo| Financial Statements (Continued)

e B BRRNE

(%)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Sales of goods — retail

The Group operates a chain of refail outlets for selling watch
products. Sales of goods are recognised when a group enfity
sells a product fo the customer. Refail sales are usually seffled

by cash or by credit card.

Sales of goods — wholesale

The Group sells a range of watch products to the retailers in
Hong Kong and Macau. Sales of goods are recognised on
the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered to retailers. The refailer has full discrefion over the
channel and price fo sell the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the retailers” acceptance
of the products. Delivery does not occur until the products
have been shipped to the specified locations, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred fo the refailers.
No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are
made with a credit term of 30 to Q0 days, which is

consistent with the market practice.

Service income
Income from provision of repair and mainfenance service is
recognised in the accounting period in which the services are

rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PN S ETEAC )

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Leases

(a)

(b)

Operating leases

leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are refained by the lessors are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases,
net of any incentives received from the lessors are charged fo
profit or loss on a straightline basis over the period of the
lease.

Finance leases

The Group leases certain fumiture and fixtures and a motor
vehicle under finance lease agreements. leases of the
furniture and fixtures where the Group has substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership, are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capifalised at the lease’s
commencement af the lower of the fair value of the leased
furniture and fixtures and the present value of the minimum

lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding  rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other
shortterm and other longterm payables. The interest element
of the finance cost is charged 1o profit or loss over the lease
period so as fo produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
fumiture and fixtures and a motor vehicle acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life

of the assets and the lease term.

2.21 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised

as a liability in the Group’s and the Company's statement of

financial position in the period in which the dividends are approved

by the entity’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EXEFHEBRE@
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Related parties

[a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is (a)

related to the Group if that person:

(i

00
N

(i)

(i)

(i

(i)

£10T #Hoday [pnuuy  paiiwi AuoduioD sBuipjoy [ouoypuisiu| 20] 1)

(i)

(iv)

H ,

has control or joint control of the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the Group.

[b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b)
conditions applies:

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related fo the others).

One entity is an associafe or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of

a group of which the other entity is a member).
Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One enfity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third enfity.
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Notes to the Consolidated anndolSkﬁemenb(Ckanued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Related parties (Continued)

(b

(Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a postemployment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity

related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the enfity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services fo

the Group or fo the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members

who may be expected fo influence, or be influenced by, that person

in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MKEEERE

3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risk: cash
flow interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of the financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse

effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to inferest rafe risk as borrowings are

©0
S

carried at variable rates.

If the inferest rates on borrowings had been 50 basis-points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant, posttax
profit for the year ended 30 April 2017 would be
HK$65,000 (2016: HK$70,000) lower/higher, mainly as
a result of higher/lower interest expense on floating rafe

borrowings.

(b) Credit risk
The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its cash and
cash equivalents, frade receivables, other receivables and
deposits. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is the

carrying amounts of these financial assets.

£10¢ Hoday [pnuuy  pajjwi] Auodwo?) sBuipjop [puoypuisiul o0] Off

The Group's cash and cash equivalents were deposited with
high quality financial instituions. Therefore, the directors do
not expect any losses arising from non-performance by these

counterparties.

Trade receivables, other receivables and deposits mainly
represented the rental deposits, trade receivables from credit
card companies, wholesale customers and o related
company. They qre assessed by reference to the historical
information obdfﬁ;counferporfy default rates. The Group has
a credit policy in place and exposures to these credit risks

are monifored on an ongoing basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PN S ETEAC )

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continved)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that an entity will encounter
difficulty in meeting obligafions associated with financial
liabilities that are seffled by delivering cash or another

financial assets.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the availability of
funding. Due to the nature of the underlying businesses, the
Group's management responsible for treasury function aims
to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient cash

and committed banking faciliies available.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period ot
the end of reporting period fo the confractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the confractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interests payments
computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on the
current rafes af the yearend dates during the year). Where
the loan agreement contains a repayable on demand clause
which gives the lender the unconditional right to call the loan
af any time, the amounts repayable are classified in the
earliest time bracket in which the lender could demand
repayment and no inferest payments were included. The
maturity analysis for other borrowings is prepared based on
the scheduled repayment dates. Balances due within 12
months equal their carying balances, as the impact of

discounting is not significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BIEREREGm@
3.1 Financial risk factors (Confinved) 3.1 BEREREZX®
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REBES R @
More than
On Less than 3 months More than

demand 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total
SEAMNLE

RER DPRIEA E1FE  BBI1F Bt

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THET THET TET THET THET

[~
o

As at 30 April 2017 R=—ZT—t 5

i mA=+A

g Trade and other B 5 N E i EN

g payables IR - 10,484 - - 10,484
?—_,_ Borrowings 23 15,575 61 184 204 16,024
o

o

G

o 15,575 10,545 184 204 26,508
E

~

5 As at 30 April 2016 RNR-ZZE—RE

g mA=+A

> Trade and other B o5 MkHMER

§ payables B — 12,647 — — 12,647
%” Borrowings EEN 16,800 61 185 449 17,495
3

]

16,800 12,708 185 449 30,142




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRN (8)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HERAKEEE @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continved) 3.1 B E ke E & @)
(C) LIqUICJIf)/ risk (Continued) (C) REE R Bi“é"/: (#&)

The table below summarises the maturity analysis of bank
borrowings with a repayment on demand clause based on

agreed scheduled repayments sef out in the loan agreements.

Taking into account the Group's financial position, the
directors do not consider that it is probable that the bank will
exercise ifs discretion fo demand immediate repayment. The
directors believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment datfes sef out in

the loan agreements.

TREMK B RIZERKERN
3z RITE KRB E R B
Bz HERRAEL
FEE DA -

REBEASE ZHBAHMR
EERRB|ITITIKRATELGT
EERANEFEERZHEE-
EEHE BRARITERS
T RIEE S W& P a2 5t 8
ERBEHEE-

Maturity analysis — Bank borrowings subject to a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

AMASN —ZARBEREFRIARALBREABERNRITER

More than

1 year but

Within 1 less than
year 2 years
150 EED

1R R2F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET

AL30 April 2017 R-ZT—+4
mA=+A 15,575 -

At 30 April 2016 RZZT—X4F
MA=+H 16,800 —

More than
2 years but
less than Total
5 years outflows
2F B E{B
LPREEF HE R
HK$'000 HK$'000
A& FAET

- 15,575

= 16,800

©o
N
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Notes to the Conso|io|ofeo| Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BIBAKEE @
32 EXERERE

3.2 Capital risk management

(-3
(-]

£10¢ Hoday [pnuuy  pajjwi] Auodwo?) sBuipjop [puoypuisiul o0] Off

H _ '

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concem in order fo
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of

capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. The
gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including “current and non-
current borrowings” as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as “equity” shown in the consolidated statement of

financial position plus net debt.

The gearing ratios as at 30 April 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Borrowings (Note 22) &R (B aF22)

less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 17) Bl : BBE& MR L EEW (M2 17)

Net cash BEFE
Equity =

Total capital RN
Gearing rafio " BERBELE

FEBzESERBRERRER

BReERE  URBRREMHD
HmREABEMEDERENE R
REBREZEREBAREKER
B ©

RERLABERGERE AEEX
EHBRNTRRORSEHE @
BRERBEEES BITHRIEEER
ERRDER -

AEENEABGBLEXREFEER
Ko BABBELERUNBEBHFHBI
BRBHEE - BB FHEABERE
,\(E?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?éﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁkﬂﬁﬂmﬁ’]
[BNEA R EBNEAfE X ) MR & R3]
EBYFHE BABBEKREEH
BHRAKFAI RO R MES
FEETH o

R-ZE—ttER-_FT—XRFMOA

“+THMERBELENT :
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —E—RHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
5 FiBT
16,013 17,467
(37,071) 41,774)
(21,058) (24,307)
130,912 158,603
109,854 134,296
N/A N/A
A T



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and liabilities,
including cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other
receivables, deposifs, trade and other payables and borrowings,
approximated fo their fair values, which either due to their shortferm

maturities, or that they are subject to floating rates.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assefs and

liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Provision for slow-moving inventories

The Group assesses annually whether any provision is required fo
reflect the carrying value of invenfory, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2.9. Net realisable values have
been determined based on the esfimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling

expenses. This estimation requires the use of judgement.

(b) Provision for reinstatement costs

Provision for reinstatement costs is estimated at the incepfion of
leasing property with reinstatement clause and reassessed at the
end of each reporting period with reference to the latest available
quotation from independent contractors. Estimation based on current
market information may vary over fime and could differ from the
actual reinstatement cost upon closures or relocation of existing

premises occupied by the Group.

3.

4.

e M BmERNE (E)

B R B 1 ()

3.3 QR EMET

AEBzeREERAGE(BER
eRRSEEY BURBEZFAE -
Hit W RE e BHNEM
ENRE B ZEAEEER
FEMEE WHAREAENE B
BRERRFHFERGFT MK -

B 52 & ot {4 5t & )

ARARBELRLRBEREBERLT
HERAEMHRREANEHREHE M
B R R AR (4 KA AR R B e

AEBERARMEHBARBRR AT
MEFEAEREEELRABERS
RAR - FRIIBEERABEZEEE
RTEFBRFEHRERNABNHE KRR
BHZE M RBRBANAT o

(o) FEREEFERE
A BRI M 2000 2 & 3 K
REFMERTEBEELAM
BEURREEZREMB TER
FERENAREBBRE 2
HEENRERTEHERLM
BSE o o ft 2 52 PR LB o

(b) BERAEE

BERABEIRYEBRERS
BIRIEE IR IR SRS D
REHFE ETLEBILAER
RORFENRE REBEHHE
FEL M St ATBER MM X
ARREEAIBRBEAREHEAN
BEMERNEREEXARR -

00
0
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Notes to the Conso|io|ofeo| Financial Statements (Continued)

e B BRRNE

(%)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e]

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

Management estimates useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment by reference fo the Group's business model, ifs assefs
management policy, the industry practice, expected usage of the
assets, expected repair and maintenance, the technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in
the market. Depreciation expense would be significantly affected by
the useful lives of the property, plant and equipment as estimated
by management. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or
it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic

assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group's major operating assefs represent property, plant and
equipment. Management performs review for impairment of the
property, plant and equipment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of these assefs
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts are defermined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the

use of judgements and esfimates.

Provision for onerous operating leases

Onerous operating leases are operating leases in which the
unavoidable costs of meefing the obligations under the operating
leases exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under
it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost
of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling

it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it.

Management performs assessment on refail ouflets with non-
cancellable clause inhe respective agreements for any provision

for onerous operating leases at the end of each reporting period.

4,

B8 88 & 5 4 5T I H E )

(c)

(d)

(e)

M BB K
"] £ A 1

EEEER2EAEEMNEBE

R 1 B9 5 5T

A EEBERER TXEMN B
EE’Ji‘Eﬁﬂﬁ‘ﬁ EHEERRE
MG RRZEHNRMAL

ﬁ%ﬁﬁi@%%ﬁ;ﬂ%% TR 55 K2
R\ EAEH - EEEMMEE
B R - BB R AR M A A AR IS
BRERAXAEATE -MAER
FHREMMAGANFHRAE X
H 5 S OB B 1l 3B B 3 B
BEILENFERBUEEE AT
BEEGSEMTES L -

Y3~ BB KR E T

24

$%@E’UIXEL§ETE%¥ AR
BEREH REFHABREDE
ﬁ%%%ﬁéﬁ’ﬂﬂﬁ@@ﬂu CER
i ERESEDE BEER
HEREEITER - AT E & AR
BEREEZFEMERE - A/
BB A R AR AT -

FELLHERS

CERENERRTREHEER
TEEATE BT A KN
BRASAIREZERLEHE
MzBBEMaEMEEHE - AHIE
TZha#eERARBRELEZAE
MR RERAFHE - ETELM
EEMKAEERREETEOM
EENTAHELT R BEE -

ERERNERENRREEMEE
AENEMRBRRE S
I 5 7 T 84 B T
o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Conﬂnued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors have been identified as the chief operating
decision-makers of the Group who review the Group's internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on the information received by

them.

The Group is principally engaged in the wholesale and retail of watches
in Hong Kong. The executive directors separately consider the
performance and resources allocation of each retail outlet and each
wholesale company. Each retail ouflet and each wholesale company is

considered as a separable operating segment.

The results of all the refail outlets have been aggregated in arriving at the
refail business reporting segment of the Group. The refail segment derives
its revenue primarily from refail of multi brands of watches in Hong Kong.
All the retail outlets sell similar class of watches with similar pricing strategy

and targeted cusfomers.

The results of the wholesale companies have been aggregated in arriving
at the wholesale business reporting segment of the Group. The wholesale
segment derives ifs revenue primarily from wholesale of multi brands of
waiches in Hong Kong. All the wholesale companies sell similar class of

watches with similar pricing sfrategy and targeted cusfomers.

The executive direcfors assess the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of operating profit excluding finance costs, group

expenses and listing expenses.

e M BmERNE (E)

7 &R E

HTESCRINAAKENTELE
REN BREENAER Z2ABRS
L‘AE”?1$?%£E&“@E§7‘J?°%ﬁlﬁaiﬁ,ﬁﬁ
BEMESNENBERLEDE -

AEBTEREBNEMEL T

& %ﬂﬁ?%?@i%ﬁqu%E&Xﬁt
%QETE’\J?%EE&E?J? i BTEER
BEHRBERR DA BBILELDE -

METEENEENERLAKENTE
EBREDAREERAE -TENH
TEANEEATEZEMEOBREKES
YWt TAETEESHE RN RESR
A EEREEBREEFIMES -

HEARNEENRERAEEOALER
BRESDHSCDELTHE - HBEDI T
EENBFEMEZ EmEOBRERELK
@ FTARERARDHERUNRIKE
Al EEREMEEEEFIMES -

ROTESERELELEFNB(TEREREK
A -EBBEEIR ETHAZ) N2 R AT
HEEDIHRRE -

0
-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 7EEH @
For the year ended 30 April 2017 BE-Z—tHTOA=+tHLEE
Retail Wholesale Elimination Total
Z2E #t 3 ESg | st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET THET FHET
Revenue I &=
External sales HSNER Y & 279,298 1,560 - 280,858
External service income SN EB AR 75 U A 2,348 5 - 2,353
92 Infersegment sales S ERE e 487 2,320 (2,807) -
2, 282,133 3,885 (2,807) 283,211
: Segment [loss)/profi 5 (65 18),/FI A (25,386) " —  (25,375)
e}
3
z Finance costs BhE Ak R (441)
g Unallocated group expenses 7k %3 it 5 [ 2 (2,742)
Q)
o]
-§ Loss before income tax K P18 Al B 18 (28,558)
2
5
g For the year ended 30 April 2016 BE-—S—AENA=+HILEE
>
g Retail Wholesale Elimination Total
7 TE #e 2% ESgic! 5t
3 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
é FH&T FET FET F&T
]
Revenue U #5
External sales SNEREE B 318,883 1,791 — 320,674
External service income SN EE AR 75 U A 647 1 — 648
Infersegment sales DEEEE — 3,101 (3,101) —
319,530 4,893 (3,101) 321,322
Segment {loss)/profit 288 (&518),/F 8 (7,925) 82 — (7,843)
Finance costs Bh & Bk AR 667)
Unallocated group expenses 7 %3 it & 8 1 % (3,050)
Unallocated listing expenses AoELETHX (598)

Loss before income tax & BT iS Bi AT ET 18 (12,158]




Notes to the Consolidated anndolSkﬁemenb(Ckanued)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Sales between segments are carried out at terms mutually-agreed between
the parties involved in fransactions. The revenue from external parties
reported 1o the executive directors is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

The Group's revenue is mainly derived from customers in Hong Kong. The
principal assets of the Group were also located in Hong Kong.
Accordingly, no analysis by geographical segment is provided. For the
year ended 30 April 2017, there are no (2016: Nil) single external

cusfomers who contributed more than 10% revenue of the Group.

Other disclosures

e M BmERNE (E)

7 EE R @

DEEBEETNIRS KRR HHE T KR
TEHERETT - AT E S E RN ED
AT aREsaEaE R EtE2EK
BR-BNTAFE-

AEBOKRGEETBREEFENEL - K
SENEITEBEENUNETR - Bt - I
ERHEAREE S MEASH DT - R
BE_ZtFHA=ZTRALFE #
BECE-RF BEIHBEFAX
SEEREBI0% 2 M-

Hib# &

For the year ended 30 April 2017 For the year ended 30 April 2016
BE-Z—tHFNAZ+tHLFE | BEZ-—R"FOA=+HILFE
Total Retail ~ Wholesale Total

Retail Wholesale
Z2E it %
HKS$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Depreciation of Y BE M

property, plant and HIE

equipment 4,908 -
Provision for slow- T E R

moving inventories 5,938 974
Impairment of property, ¥ % ~ = & #%

plant and equipment & 5 (& 4,362 -

Provision for onerous EHERELHE
operating leases B 1E 6,237 -

E Y TE # Et
HK$’000 | HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000

FERT TET THET TET

4,908 5,242 2 5,244
6,912 1,496 1,135 2,631
4,362 750 = 750
6,237 6,218 = 6,218

EryeRHEERY 9

I -



O
»H

£10T #Hoday [pnuuy  paiiwi AuoduioD sBuipjoy [ouoypuisiu| 20] 1)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

6.

N

OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET

6. Hftiz (&E)FHE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT TET
Net foreign exchange gains i U5 s o EE 9 5
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HE W% - BB KR #E1E - (494)
9 (489)
EXPENSES BY NATURE 7. RMBEESHEX
2017 2016
—EB-tF —E-RFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 185,981 203,803
Provision for slow-moving inventories (Nofe 14) T EEE KT I14) 6,912 2,631
Employee benefit expenses (Nofe 8) BERBMA (HE8) 33,441 34,271
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 13) ¥ % - BB &R E T E
(Ka£13) 4,908 5,244
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (Nofe 13)  #1% ~ & R & &R E
(Ftat13) 4,362 750
Operating lease expenses mEHERX
— Office premises —WMRAEME 1,094 1,094
— Repair centres —#EPL 66 107
— Retail outlets —ZTEg 49,417 54,502
Provision for onerous operating leases (Nofe 21(c)) LEKETHERE
(Bt&E21(c)) 6,237 6,218
Advertising and promotion expenses B R HEER X 3,249 2,844
Auditor's remuneration G GIER
— Audit services — RERB 571 1,365
Bank and credit card charges RITRERRAX 3,598 4,188
Listing expenses FHHEX - 598
Other expenses L, HAth B X 11,501 14,709
4
Tofal cost of sales, selling and distribufion costs and HERAE - HERDHAA
administrative expenses - RITEBRA X 45 311,337 332,324

.......




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARE B ISR MY RE (B8)

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

Salaries and allowances e KoRE
Directors’ quarters rental ExmEelED

R ARAE F AR AR
— R MEAEEF S

Retirement benefit costs
— Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme

(a) Five highest paid individuals

8. &
)

ERABET(BEES
)

2017 2016

—E—tF | —B-XF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

32,242 32,568

= 444

1,199 1,259

33,441 34,271

(o) EEEZSHFMAL

For the year ended 30 April 2017, the five individuals whose
emoluments were the highest in the Group include 3 (2016: 3)
directors whose emoluments were reflected in the analysis shown in
Note 29. The emoluments paid to the remaining 2 (2016: 2)
individuals are as follows:

BE_Z—LtFWA=+TRHILF
B ARBENEIEARSHFHMA LS
BHEIB(ZE-—RF:3R)E="
RENWS ENME29M 2589
DFRR BN TFEH2E(ZE

—RE2R)ALTHBENT

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Salaries, bonus, other allowances and e Te4 - HMEMRE
benefits in kind R 1,800 1,800

Retirement benefit costs IR K48 F) B A

— Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme — BB RTERETE 36 36
1,836 1,836

The emoluments of the remaining individuals fell within the following

bands:

Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 T % 1,000,000 7T

HBALTHOMEN FATEHE :

Number of individuals

N
2017 2016
—E—t% | —FAE
2 2

ERATEREATTE-T O

I -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BE KX
2017 2016
—E— —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEROFEHZ 424 664
Interest element of finance leases MEMENF B S 17 3
96 441 667

For the year ended 30 April 2017, the interest on bank borrowings which
contain a repayment on demand clause amounted to HK$424,000 (2016:

The amount of income tax charged/(credited) to profit or loss represents:

BE_Z—tFHA=ZTALFE &
BARERERZ GRORITERME

HK$664,000). £424,000/ T (=& — ;X5 : 664,000
BIT) °
10. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) 10. FR8HE R (B %)

BERBEMNGR(E2)NMAEHSEE:

£10T #Hoday [pnuuy  paiiwi AuoduioD sBuipjoy [ouoypuisiu| 20] 1)

2017 2016

—E—tHF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THT FET

Hong Kong profits tax BEHEREH

Current income fax BIERFT 15 %% 115 1,318
Deferred income tax (Note 20) EEFT SR (K7 aE20) (982) (827)

(867) 491

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for af the rate of 16.5% (2016:
16.5%) on the esfimated assessable profit for the year.

FARADHAEFERBABRI60S%(=F
—REIOSHMBEAREBRBFEN

B




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE SRR (B)

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (Continued)

The tax on the Group's loss before income tax differs from the theorefical

amount that would arise using the tax rate of Hong Kong as follows:

Loss before income tax

Calculated at tax rate of 16.5%
Tax effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset

was recognised

Income tax (credit] /expense

11. DIVIDENDS

The board of directors of the Company does not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 30 April 2017 and 2016.

BT :
2017
—E—+iF
HK$’000
FE T
B FT 15 i A S 18 (28,558)
16 5% R ERMTIE (4,712)
T EBEH G E:
AT A 201
WERREENMESRBEE
M EEE 3,644
88 (&), X (867)
11. g2

HiPR B o

10. FIB8HRER (X)) @

BRAEEZRASHATERNH AR
RAEEREAERENERTENE

2016
—ZE—RF
HK$'000
F# T
(12,158)

(2,000]

327

ARAREEETEBRNBE_FT—+
FRZE-RFOA=THLEFENHR

crasasEyEsy  §
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Nofes fo the Conso|io|ofeo| Financial Statements (Continued)

AR B R R Y EE ()

12. LOSS PER SHARE 12. 3 REE
(a) Basic (a) &R

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss affributable to FREREBIIERAQITEE A
owners of the Company by the weighted average number of BhHEERLAFREBTEBR
ordinary shares in issue during the year. MINEFHEAE -
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
98 Loss attributable to owners of the Company (HK$'000) AR &) B A FEAEEE
_ (F#&T) (27,691) (12,649
=
2: Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue B %% 17 & 38 i% H1 48 7 15 &
(thousands) (Noe) (F8) (At 42) 800,000 793,989
N
é Basic loss per share [HK cents per share) BREREE (FRB) (3.46) (1.59)
H
g Note: Bt -
B
= The weighted average number of shares in issue for the year ended 30 April RAEFREEMS BE_T—X
2 2016 for the purpose of loss per share computation has adjusted for the FOA=+RALFENEHETRM M
& effect of the 99,999 shares issued on 9@ April 2015 under the group RYHHERRBEREB LT M ETT
é’ reorganisation in preparation for listing and the 599,900,000 shares issued WEBEEAR _Z-—LFWMANA
§ under the capitalisation issue on 12 May 2015 [Note 18(b)). FE1T90,9000% Ik 5 LA R R 1B & A b
7 BOMR_ZE-—AFREA+ZAET
H 599,900,000 8% B 17 #9 5 & 38 ) 34 &
N (BTEE18(b)) °
i~
(b) Diluted (b) 15
For the years ended 30 April 2017 and 2016, diluted loss per BE T —F+HER T —X~EN
share equals basic loss per share as there was no dilufive potential B=+BILEE BB EErn
share. ERG REREIEEEASNE

PR AR EIE -

e




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold
improvements
HEMERE
HK$000
FET
At 1 May 2015 RZE-1F
HA—H
Cost BN 11,150
Accumulated depreciation ZFERRE
and impairment (7,349)
Net book amount RHFEE 3,801
Year ended 30 April 2016 BE=-F— <&
MA=+HLEFE
Opening nef book amount  F ¥ BRI SF (B 3,801
Additions RE 7.767
Depreciation (Nofe /) e (Ket/) (2,693
Impairment (Nofe /) WE K ZE7) [750)
Disposal HE (510)
Closing net book amount FAREEFE 7,609
At 30 April 2016 RZE-—AR"FMA=+H
Cost B AR 17,607
Accumulated depreciation ZEAMERRE
and impairment (?,998)
Net book amount REEE 7,609
Year ended 30 April 2017 HE-ZT—+ &
WMA=+HILtFE
Opening nef book amount  F ¥ BREF (B 7,609
Additions NE 1,238
Depreciation (Nofe /) WeE#iz7) (3,142)
Impairment (Nofe /) WA (K :E7) (4,362]
Closing net book amount FRE@FE 1,343
At 30 April 2017 RZZE—+tFMA=+H
Cost BN 18,845
Accumulated depreciation R MERRE
and impairment (17,502
Net book amount REFE 1,343

VAN
Ar R

13. 9% BERRE

Furniture
and fixtures
RAREE
HK$'000
FHET

3,517

(2,413

1,104

1,104
37
(951)

190

3,554

(3,364)

190

190

(134)

3,559

(3,498)

61

Office
equipment
WAEHRE

HK$'000

FET

836

(665)

Q09

(760)

955

(851)

104

Motor
vehicles
and yacht
HEREE
HK$'000
FHET

1,087

(218)

169

169
7,705
(1,505

(78]

6,291

8,433

(2,142)

6,291

8,433

(3,683)

4,750

VSRR MY e ()

Total
#et
HK$'000
THT

16,590

(11,345]

5,245

5,245
15,582
(5,244)
(750)
(594)

14,239

30,503

(16,264)

14,239

14,239

1,289
(4,908
(4,362)

6,258

31,792

(25,534)

6,258

0
)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13. 9% - BERRBE@®

o
o

£10¢ Hoday [pnuuy  pajjwi] Auodwo?) sBuipjop [puoypuisiul o0] Off

i Bl

Depreciation of HK$4,602,000 (2016: HK$4,844,000) have been
charged to “selling and distribution costs” and HK$306,000 (2016:
HK$400,000) have been charged to “administrative expenses” for the
year ended 30 April 2017.

Each retail outlet is identified as an individual cash-generating unit ("CGU").
Certain retail outlets generated low profits or losses during the year ended
30 April 2017. For the year ended 30 April 2017, management had
performed impairment assessment on those lossmaking refail outlets using
the value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pretax cash flow
projections based on financial budgefs and forecasts approved by
management, applying the discount rate of 13% (2016: 13%) and
covering the remaining lease period of the respective refail outlets. The
esfimated recoverable amounts for certain retail outlets could not cover the
carrying values of their respective leasehold improvements, fumiture and
fixtures. The resulting provision for impairment of property, plant and
equipment and provision for onerous contracts recognised as at 30 April
2017 amounted to HK$5,112,000 (2016: HK$750,000] and
HK$8,598,000 (2016: HK$6,323,000), respectively.

The Group leases cerfain furniture and fixtures and a motor vehicle under

finance lease agreements. The leases are for a ferm of 3 years.

The net book value of property, plant and equipment held under finance

BE_Z—tFENA=+TRHIFE"
#r B4,602,000% T( = T — KX F:
4,844,000/ ) 2 B #HE K7 KA
B M306,0008 T(ZF — K F:
400,000 L) E B MTTHAX | -

ETEECHENRBUNRSELEN
(ReELEN) HTEEEREE
TR AFNAZTRLEEFEELELE
MBEEBE - B2 —tFMA=+
HEFE EEECOUAZTEHFEERD
TEEEREREBEMAEEZNETRE
A EFETEAERRBEEEREE
HWERESZTEEEANFRBENRE
AGHNREAMRSRERER 3% (=
T—RNFI3B)MBBARMAER - EFT
TEENGA T RO REERAE
EEMHEMEERE RARKEZERE
B-MEENYE BERRERER
BREEANBEBR _ZE—tFOA=
TESRERERRS5112,000E T (ZF
— X% : 750,0007% 7T ) K& 8,598,0007%
TT(ZF—7RF : 6,323,000 7T) °

rEEREREHAEREEAE TRA
REEAR—@WE HH/3F-

BEREEEECREZDE BER

lease obligations comprise: REZEIHFERRE:
2017 2016
—E—tfF —FE-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Cost — capitalised finance leases KA -BBEFREANREEE 3,498 3,498
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (2,918) (2,672)
Net book amount “ﬁh FREDF(E 580 826

¢ “
W

1R




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

14. INVENTORIES

Finished goods ELRK T

Less: provision for slow-moving inventories o R E B

Movements in provision for slow-moving inventories are as follows:

At beginning of the year R A)
Charged to profit or loss (Note /) BE=MKR (WWiE/)
At end of the year RER

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost of
sales amounted to HK$192,893,000 (2016: HK$206,434,000),
which included provision for slow-moving inventories of HK$6,912,000
(2016: HK$2,631,000) for the year ended 30 April 2017.

e M BmERNE (E)

14. 78

2017 2016
— —TE-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&xT FAET
120,610 133,810
(22,717) (15,805)
97,893 118,005
T ERBZESNOT
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
(15,805) (13,174)
(6,912) (2,631)
(22,717) (15,805)

BE-_Z2—tFWNA=1+TRHILFEE"
HRAAXLFAHEENETZFER
R /192,893,000 (=T — X F:
206,434,000 7)) B BRERHEF
EREO6120008 T(ZF — K F:
2,631,000 7T) °

EYHEWHAEEE O
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 15. ZEREsHNER T A
2017 2016
—E—+F AN
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET

Assets as per consolidated statement of SAMBERAEMTEE
financial position

102 Loans and receivables: ER R ERRIA :
— Trade and other receivables — B 5 R H KR 18,840 18,923
— Cash and cash equivalents —RekBEEEY 37,071 41,774
Total =t 55,911 60,697

Liabilities as per consolidated statement #& B EMRA R RAR
of financial position

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REERAFEZEREE
— Borrowings (other than finance lease liabilities)  — & 2 (B & & & & A5 15,575 16,800
— Finance lease liabilities —BMEHRERE 438 667
— Trade and other payables — B 5 RHMEN KA 10,484 12,647
Total s 26,497 30,114

£10T #Hoday [pnuuy  paiiwi AuoduioD sBuipjoy [ouoypuisiu| 20] 1)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES

AND PREPAYMENTS

e M BmERNE (E)

16 EWE B RIE - Htb B

MIERFENRE

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Trade receivables W E 5 kI8

— third parties —F=% 2,735 1,716
— a related company (Note 26(d)) — — R R B (B 7% 26(d)) 4 14
2,739 1,730
Rental and utilities deposits Hekr HEEES 15,818 16,679
Prepayments TE A FRIE 1,245 635
Other receivables H b pE Uk 1B 283 514
20,085 19,558

Less: non-current portion W FEENEREE
— renfal deposits —HERS (12,643) (11,619)
Current portion B HR &8 > 7,442 7,939

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 30 April 2017 and 2016 was
the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The
Group did not hold any collateral as security. The carrying amounts of
trade receivables, deposits, other receivables and prepayments
approximated to their fair values and were denominated in HKS.

The trade receivables and amount due from a related company mainly
comprise receivables from credit card companies for refail sales and
wholesale customers. There was no specific credit terms granted fo those
credit card companies. The receivables due from credit card companies
were usually settled within 7 days. The Group's credit terms granted fo
wholesale customers, including a related party customer, generally ranged
from 30 to Q0 days from the invoice date. As at 30 April 2017 and
2016, the ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on the invoice
date is as follows:

Within 30 days 30
31 to 60 days 31E60H

As at 30 April 2017, none of the trade receivables was past due but not
impaired (2016: Nil).

R-_E—+tER-_FTE—XEFMA=1+H
FFAHNSTaFEERR A LS E
EWREZEEBE ~AEETEFEE
MERMERER - BKE S NIE - &
e HEMERRBRENRIEZEEE
HEANFEMRELABITFE -

FEU R 5 FKIA & FE M — R B A Rl A 5K
BFXFrZ2eERERKAERFARIRMERR
MEWKREBE BEAZSEEARAAR
HERSEEEERH BREAFRATHN
HRE—BRR7BRES - AEEKR Tt
BERFBERE—REEFRRP)ZEES
— N THBEZAHELFTI0OEH - B
—E-tFRFTE-R"FHA=+AH"
REZAMEHZERE S FIBRES
LR UENE

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FBx F& T

2,635 1,686

104 44

2,739 1,730

W_Z—+FNA=1+H HErKkZ

SRBEHHEARBRAE(ZZT —KF:
B

(27 ) B ol T 56 o) =5t 8

I -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17 H5ERREEEY
2017 2016
—E— —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Cash at banks SRITFER 36,822 41,673
Cash on hand FHERE 249 101
Cash and cash equivalents BE&hBEEEEY 37,071 41,774
Maximum exposure to credif risk e BE R 36,822 41,673

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents were denominated in
the following currencies:

RekReFEMIEEENTIER

SHE -

2017 2016

—EB—tF —T—XEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THExT FAT

HK$ BT 37,054 41,759
Renminbi AR 17 15
37,071 41,774




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Conﬂnued)

e M BmERNE (E)

18. SHARE CAPITAL 18. Ig &<
Number of Nominal
shares value
B8 E EE
HK$'000
FHET
Authorised — ordinary shares of EE — #kEEOC.01ETT
HK$0.01 each V& B
1 May 2015, 30 April 2016, RZZE—RAERA—A-
1 May 2016 and 30 April 2017 —E-REWA=+TRHE"
—E-R"EFRA-BRK
—tFMA=+H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid — ordinary shares of BEETkAR - 8KkEEO0.O]
HK$0.01 each BT EER
At 1 May 2015 W-—Z—-—hERA—A 100,000 1
Shares issued pursuant fo the Public Offer BEARBEETZIRG
[Note (a)) (K (a)) 200,000,000 2,000
Capitalisation issue of shares (Nofe (b)) AR BT D (M (b)) 599,900,000 5,999
At 30 April 2016, 1 May 2016 and RZZE—R"FMOMA=+H"
30 April 2017 —E-RFRA—ABAkK
—ET—+HFMA=+H 800,000,000 8,000

Notes:

(a) On 12 May 2015, the Company listed its shares on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited with public offer shares of
200,000,000 at an issue price of HK$0.68 per share. The transaction
costs attributable to issue of shares amounted to HK$9,633,000.

(b) On 12 May 2015, the Company capitalised an amount of HK$5,999,000
from the amount standing to the credit of share capital account of the
Company and the said sum was applied in paying up in full the
599,900,000 shares issued to the shareholders immediately prior to the
listing according to their respective shareholding.

Hiat -

RZE—RAFRA+ZH  AAEKHG
REBBEXSBERAT ER LT -
AR E S IR 1D A 200,000,000 -
BITERER068EIT - AEITRHOE
HE KX GKAES,633,0008 T °

(a)

a«lﬂﬂ}%%

b) RZZE-—AFHAA+=H ARFAHEAK
N 7Hx$ﬁ§ﬂﬁ?ﬁﬂ§%ﬁi59@@,000%7ﬂ%
FEAR LSO RAEMRRERL
MAIRBARR B B W R R E 1T
2 599,900,000 A% A& 17 °

o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B 7% ¥R R M = ()

= AN
A

19. CAPITAL RESERVE

(al

(b)

T
L
#

As at 31 October 2014, Mr. lam Man Wah ("Mr. lam") agreed
fo waive part of its lending to the Group. The waived amount of
HK$ 14,282,000 was credited to the capital reserve.

On 9 April 2015, the Company allotted and issued 5,833 and
94,166 of its shares to Ms. Ma Lili ("Ms. Ma") and Tic Tac
Investment Holdings Limited, a company owned by Mr. lam and
Ms. Chan Ka Yee, Elsa ("Ms. Chan”), to acquire their respective
shareholding interests in the group subsidiaries.

The balance of HK$3,902,000 credited to the capital reserve
represented the difference between the carrying valve of the non-
controlling interest of Jenus Top International limited acquired over
the nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in

exchange thereof.

The combined share capital of HK$4,300,000 was reclassified to
capifal reserve upon the completion of the group reorganisation.

19. EXRf#

(a)

-

R-E-—HFE+TA=1t—H MHX
EREIMELEDABEHRRER
FTAEKENBOER - BH2RA
14,282,000 TEFF AR K& ©

R-ZE-—RAFMANRA A2AR
TR EEITHS, 8330 K94,166 /% Bk
I FBMAMZ L ((HrL]) REE
REEBRARAR(—HEAMKELE
EReErt (Rt DEEHNA
) NEBREZENEENE
DR Z AR

FHAB AR B 2 ##3,902,000%8
TTHEMEBEZHEEBAR QA
FERERZEREEBLEARQA
RRBMBETZRAEAEZEZR

BE 48 A% 44,300,000 TR & B &
HERRKRENDBEEERNGFHE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

20. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

20.

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

Deferred income tax assefs:
Recoverable within 12 months

Recoverable after more than 12 months

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Payable or o be seffled within 12 months

Payable or fo be seffled more than 12 months

Deferred income tax assets, net

EEFEHEE:
#5012 A R Uk el
AR 1218 A & W E

BEREFBHEE:
BRI12ME B A #EE
R EEE 128 B &3k

EREFEHEEFE

The movement in the deferred income tax account is as follows:

At beginning of the year
Credited to profit or loss (Note 10)

At end of the year

N
st AEE (B 10)

RER

e M BmERNE (E)

i SE Fr 13 %t

BEEBREEERELERIBEEY M
T

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx F# T
186 83

2,803 2,462
2,989 2,545

- (229)

45 - (309)
- (538)

2,989 2,007

BIEFFSTHERBE ZEHMT ¢

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T F# T
2,007 1,180
982 827
2,989 2,007

(27 ) B ol T 56 o) =5t 8
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Notes to the Conso|io|ofeo| Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

20. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax liabilities and assefs during the
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the

same fax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

EEZEREHR @
BTGB EEREERE NS
(3 R &t & 3K 85 F — B 76 215 BB A 8
BE) T :

EIEFFEHEE

Accelerated tax depreciation

MEBBERE
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
08 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
; At beginning of the year RE ] (538) (92)
= Credited/(charged) to profit or loss FAS(F0B)EE 538 (446)
)
g At end of the year RER = (538)
3
g . X e e s
= Deferred income tax assets ELERMESHEE
gw Decelerated tax
3 Provision depreciation Tax losses Total
2 BE  REMEFRE  BEKA @3t
5 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
o FHBT THT THET FHET
§> At 1 May 2015 R-ZE—RFERA—H 183 1,006 83 1,272
:’; Credifed to profit or loss HAER 860 413 — 1,273
(1]
K At 30 April and 1 May 2016 R =2 — x4 A
S Z—t+tHRREA—H 1,043 1,419 83 2,545
i~ Credifed to profit or loss HAER 48 223 173 444
At 30 April 2017 R-ZE—+FWMA=+H 1,091 1,642 256 2,989

i Bl

Deferred income fax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to
the extent that the redlisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income

tax assets of HK$5,814,000 (2016: HK$2,170,000) in respect of
3,154,000) that

losses amounting to HK$35,250,000 (2016: HK$1

can be carried forward against future taxable income indefinitely.

Te.

EHEBEBENRBEBRRKERT A
HERBATRK BEMSHEED
HRARRENEBE - XEE W ER
AERBRHAEETRRERBTBRALZ
B 1835,250,000% T (= & — N F:
13,154,000 7t ) E R IE & FT 15 M
& E 5,814,000 E(:g_/\i-
2,170,000% 7T) °




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERME (E)

21. PROVISION FOR OTHER LIABILITIES AND 21LHMEERER EFK

CHARGES, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Hi B RIERE
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TET

Trade payables (Nofe (a)) 1 E 5K E (it )

— third parties —8=%5 9,575 9,490
— a related company (Note 26(d)) — — BB~ B) (B 2£ 26(d)) 17 12
9,592 9,502
Rent payable JEfTHE % 1,574 2,688
Accrued employee benefit expenses JEstE BEAAX 2,888 3,010
Provision for reinstatement costs (Note (b)) BB AR (W1 et (b)) 1,776 1,776
Provision for onerous operating leases (Notes 13 and ()] S E & &R E B (H i+ 13 % (c)) 8,598 6,323
Other accruals and payables Hip st & A M 508 676 2,400
25,104 25,699
Less: non-current portion B SEBNHR AR (1,653) (3,020
Current portion BN #3 & 23,451 22,679

As at 30 April 2017 and 2016, the carrying amounts of trade payables,
provisions and other payables approximated to their fair values and were

mainly denominated in HK$.
Notes:
(a)  Trade payables and amount due to a related company

As at 30 April 2017 and 2016, the aging analysis of the trade payables
based on due date is as follows:

Within 30 days 30BR
31 to 60 days 31260H
Over 61 days HiBOIH

RoE-—tFR-F-AEMA=+
ERN DTN T rETy OF
Az EEERLAFEMEE B EEY
T -

i

(o) ENEZREREN-HBEBEAIN
A

RZBE—+FRZZE-—RNEFWA=+
B BB SFRIBEREEANKREK DN

m -
2017 2016
S i —E-AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHRT THRT
9,124 9,053
435 349
33 100

9,592 9,502

(27 ) B ol T 56 o) =5t 8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

21. PROVISION FOR OTHER LIABILITIES AND 21 H 8
CHARGES, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES H fl FE A RO B A

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) HiaE - ()
(b)  Provision for reinstatement costs (b) EERNEE
Movements in the Group's provision for reinstatement costs are as follows: KREBZIEERANBEEESHOT
2017 2016
—B—+tF —E-RF
110 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
=
(e}
g_' At beginning of the year REY 1,776 1,681
= Additional provision during the year FRNEINEE - 442
a Sefflements/reversals during the year FRNER R - (347)
g
o At end of the year RER 1,776 1,776
R
8
g (c)  Provision for onerous operating leases () EZELEHEERE
e
g Movements in the Group's provision for onerous operating leases are as NEBFB 7ESRKEHEREESHOT :
5 follows:
:
> 2017 2016
Z S —B—x%
= HK$000 HK$000
3 Figw FET
8
N At beginning of the year MNEF) 6,323 1,110
Provision during the year (Nofe /) FREEHZ) 6,237 6,218
Release of provision upon payment of rental charges TAEEEREERBE (3,962) (1,005)
At end of the year RER 8,598 6,323
The provision for onerous operafing leases represents the anticipated CERETHERBIERENNETEE
unavoidable costs for fulfilling the onerous non-cancellable lease agreements. TAIZHEEBREENTA# 2K
The lease agreements will all expire by end of year ending 30 April 2020. KeFiBEHERBERBEE T4
The provision amount would be reduced upon the payment of the remaining MA=+BHIFEFKEAMER - BHESE
rental charges. BRREMNRHGESERRRLD -




22. BORROWINGS

Non-current

Finance lease liabilities (Note b)

W

22. &K

ERD
MEMERE (M iFb)

Current B
Shortterm bank loans (Note a) MEBRTER K FEa)
Finance lease liabilities (Note b) mEMRE E TE (Ktatb)
Total borrowings &R R
Notes: Wit -
Bank borrowings (a)

(a)

As stated in Nofe 2.1(a), bank loans of HK$5,504,000 as at 30 April
2017 are drawn from one of the Group's banking facilities for which one of
the covenants requirements was in breach. The respective bank loans are
repayable on demand upon breach of the covenants. In July 2017, the bank
granted an oneoff waiver from compliance with the relevant breached
covenant requirement for the year ended 30 April 2017. The Group is also
negofiating with the bank fo revise the covenant requirement in order to
ensure continuous compliance of the covenant requirements.

The weighted average inferest rates were 2.7% (2016: 2.6%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of the Group's bank loans were denominated in HK$
and unsecured and approximated to their fair values.

As at 30 April 2017, the Group had aggregate banking facilities of
HK$76,120,000 (2016: HK$84,997,000) for overdrafts and loans.
Unused facilities as ot the same date were HK$60,545,000 (2016:
HK$68,197,000). The banking facilities were granted to the subsidiaries of
the Group and were subject to annual review and guaranteed by unlimited
guarantees from the Company and cerfain subsidiaries of the Group.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cominued)

fre WIS R T 5L ()

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
202 438
15,575 16,800
236 229
15,811 17,029
16,013 17,467

RITRE R

BN FE2 ()Tl R=—ZF— WM
A=+ BT ERS 504,000 7T Ty
BEEEREF-—HZZRATHEAEER
HP—HRITHRERR - BRARITER
BRERLARKRERERE R —
tFLA ROIBEREE-Z—tF
MA=Zt+ELHLFEETHBERZH
BMEM—KERE AEEJFIELERTT
ERUBREERT  BUARRISER
TFTRERE ©

MEFIHFEMER27%(ZF — RF !
2.6%) °

AEBRTERNEEERETIE
REER WEHEAFERE -

RZE—+tFWNA=+H x&H
FEHEBEIRERNBETHE LS
576,120,000 T( = & — X F:
84,097,000 7t ) - R B 2 K & A &
& B60,5450008 (=T — KN F:
68,197,000 L) - RITME HIE TR
SEMBAR WEARTFESMKH
ARARRAEBMETHB LR RERN
ERERMTER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

22. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continved)

(b)

Finance lease liabilities

22. B R @

The rights to the leased assets are reverted to the lessor in the event of default

of the lease liabilities by the Group.

Hfat - (%)

(b) BEHEEME

MAKEERHEERME AEEEED

R B A o

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK'000
THET TET

Gross finance lease liabilities — minimum lease payments B E A E & FE42 % — EBEM K
Within one year —FR 245 246
In the second year BF 204 245
In the third year E=F - 204
449 695
Future finance charges on finance lease liabilities MEHERENARKRKNEER (11) (28)
Present value of finance lease liabilities MEHERBEMNIRE 438 667

The present value of finance lease liabilities MEFERENBRENT
was as follows:

Within one year —FR 236 229
In the second year BEF 202 236
In the third year F=4F - 202
438 667




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
oN:

4R B R AR MY ot (48)

23. COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

As at 30 April 2017 and 2016, the Group did not have any

material capital commitments.

Operating commitments

The Group leases various refail outlets, offices, directors’ quarters
and warehouses. The majority of lease agreements are non-
cancellable with lease terms between 1 and 3 years. Some lease
agreements are cancellable with a notice period of 3 to 6 months.
The lease expenses charged fo profit or loss during the year are
disclosed in Note 7.

The future aggregate minimum lease renfal expenses in respect of
refail outlets, an office, repair centres and the quarter for directors

under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

BRI

No lafer than 1 year
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years

The above lease commitments do not include commitments for
additional rentals payable, if any, when revenue of individual retalil
outlet exceeds a predetermined level as it is not possible fo
determine in advance the amount of such additional rentals.

23. &g

(a)

(b)

ERIFETERSF

BARAEYE

RZE—+tFRZF—-—XFOEOA
=t+H AEETELAEREAR
HHE o

KR

AEEHEZHEEE BRI
EEEENRE - KBHEER
OB ITHEE HHANFIES
FTE-HBOoHEHEMATEBIE
OfEl A 3B 50 EA T LA BUEH - R A/
BREMBROBEERX M E7 AR

= o

REAAHELCEHERERT
EE -MAE #ERPLREER
EHRRKERSHAEET

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBx FET
52,933 44,326
17,521 47,830
70,454 92,156

LR EEAELTEREARRME
P& B UL S R TR E KR
EENBEIIEMNES(ME)MA
7 REZEEABLTHETESBEIN

=
©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

24. NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) 2. BEFRB (A REF
OPERATIONS #
2017 2016
—EB-tF ZET-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET
Loss before income tax % P45 B Al 5 1B (28,558) (12,158
14 Adjustments for: AT & IBERE -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - -BERZBEINE 4,908 5,244
= Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HE&E W% - BE KL H 2 BB - 494
g Impairment of property, plant and equipment M- BEREERE 4,362 750
7 Provision for slow-moving inventories T R R 6,912 2,631
§~. Provision for onerous operating leases LEREHEEE 6,237 6,218
?__L Listing expenses FHHX - 598
%_ Finance costs 7h & B AN 441 667
0
3 (5,698) 4,444
Ef Changes in working capital: BEEEE:
& Trade receivables, other receivables and FEWE 5 FRIB -« H M fE W R IE
: prepayments SR (527) (2,566)
;‘:’; Inventories FE 13,200 (6,100)
3 Trade and other payables B 5 K H b &~ RIE (6,830) (8,733
3
S Net cash generated from/(used in) operations BERRE/(FTR)REeFEE 145 (12,961)
For the year ended 30 April 2016, the Group disposed of its property, HE_Z-—R"FOA=THLFE" K
plant and equipment of HK$594,000 with cash proceeds of SEEEHBEES94,0008 T2 W
HK$100,000. W B K& % - FTi5 3 1E & IR £ 100,000

AT e




25. SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 30 April 2017 are shown as

follows:

Name

1

Directly held

HERE

Tic Tac Intemational Company
Limited

BERRARAA

Indirectly held

HEEa

City Greot Limited

WABRAR

Jenus Top Intemational Limited

HEERARAA

Sun Step Asia limited

BETMNERAR

Tic Tac Time Company Limited

HEBRERAR

Tic Tac Time (Refail] Company
Limited

REEREEERDF

Tic Tac Time (Trading) Company
Limited

HEEEDHERAT)

Treasure Ascent International

Limited
ERERERAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRN (8)

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal
entity

A 3 3 B %
EEERER

British Virgin Islands, limited
liability company
RERZES ARAR

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

e ARDA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

EB  BRRA

Hong Kong,limited liability
company

B4 ARAF

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

FA BRRA

Brifish Virgin Islands, limited
liability company
HEBRELHE BRAF

Brifish Virgin Islands, limited
liability company
RBRELES  ARAR

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

Bk BRAR

Date of incorporation

R Ak

1 July 2014

~F-mELA-A

25 January 2007

I s

30 June 2004

“ETMFAA=TH

17 June 2006

“FEAFAAHLE

28 July 1997

—NNEFLAZTNR

4 October 2013

—Z-=4+AmA

4 October 2013

—T—-=F+AmA

22 October 2008

T \F+A=+=H

25. B 2 7

BIIRMT
Particulars of issued Equity interest held
share capital/ EER

registered capital 2017 2016

BRITRE/
AMEAZHE —T-tF  —T-RF
Us$2 100% 100%

VEY
HK$1 100% 100%

1%
HK$300,000 100% 100%

300,0007%7T
HK$500,000 100% 100%

500,000#7T
HK$3,000,000 100% 100%

3,000,000 7T
Us$2 100% 100%

Ve
Us$2 100% 100%

VEH
HK$500,000 100% 100%

500,000%7c

RIB-—LtFOA=ZTHZTEWMBRAF

Principal activities
and place of
operation

TEERREELY

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBREREZK

Wholesale of watches in
Hong Kong
REBB R

Refail of waiches in Hong
Kong
REBTERK

Wholesale of watches in
Hong Kong
REBB T

Refail of watches in Hong
Kong

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
RERUEREER

Invesiment holding in
Hong Kong
RERRERAER

Refail of waiches in Hong
Kong
REBZERE

-
-
(¢,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26. Bt AR5

The Company is controlled by Tic Tac Invesiment Holdings Limited which
owns 70.63% of the Company's shares as at 30 April 2017. The
remaining shares are widely held. The ultimate controlling parties of Tic
Tac Investment Holdings Limited are Mr. lam and Ms. Chan.

(G) The directors of the Company are of the view that the following
parties/companies were related parties that had transactions or

balances with the Group during years presented:

RZZE—+tFWA=+H ' XRFHA
EREZERBRABZES REAAR
ARty 2 70.63% < g8 T Bt Bl A RA
ITHE - REREERERABZHER
BT RMEERREL L -

(a) AamEERAE THAL AT
BN 2 FEE R E AN E BT
e A A AR =R 0] ) Ak

116
= Name of the related party Relationship with the Group
g MBS E B8 BEAEEHER
g
g? Mr. Lam Executive director and shareholder of the Company
- ok ARRRTEFRRE
s Ms. Chan Executive director and shareholder of the Company
2 R+ AR RRITEEHBR
é Company A Significant influence by a director of the Company
3 NCIPN XRRB—REEFERTE
Ef Company B Significant influence by a director of the Company
= N AIB SADA-BEFEAYE
>
3
g (b) Transactions with related parties (b) HEBLSHNRS
~
"S‘: Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial Br A AR & B 1% Rk B A 20 9 P
8 statements, during the years presented, the following transactions BEN RENFE  THNXHT
~N

were carried out with related parties af terms mutually agreed by

&7 H R i 5E A9 R R BB T

both parties: #AT
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET

Continuing transactions BEXS

Purchase from Company B (Nofe i) | RRIBETTERME (M ati) 138 133
Sales to Company A (Nofe i) RABAEITHE (Bati) 266 322

Notes: R Y et

ad
.

(i) Purchases/sales of goods from/to related companies were carried
out af rafe mutually-agreed between the parties involved in the
fransactions.

i Bl

1R

(i) MK ARETIRE HEEM
DRXS5EHERBENERE
70
« M
e




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Key management compensation

Key management includes directors [executive and non-executive)
and the senior management of the Group. The compensation paid

or payable fo key management for employee services is shown

e M BmERNE (E)

26. BEER R B @)

(c) EE2EEEH MM

ITEEEEREASRBES (T
RFEMTIEERERE -SESR
MEESNXENETZEEENH

below: BFIRET :
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FAET
Salaries, bonus, other allowances and e e HEMEAEE
benefits in kind ) F &= 7,104 7,534
Retirement benefit costs R ARAR FI A A
— Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme —mEMEAELTE 108 108
7,212 7,642

(d) Amount due from/(to) related parties

The Group has the following balances with the related parties:

(d) %H&/(E&EH) B8 B 75 B9 3K
Ir\

AEB BT ZHEA AT :

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET

Trade g5
Amount due from Company A JE WX RIAH) FRIR 4 14
Amount due to Company B FET A RIBHYFRIA (17) (12)

(2 7 ) 0 4 E

I -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Confinued) 26. B AR 5 @)
(d) Amount due from/(to) related parties (Continued) (d) FEW(FER) B S 1R

I8 (1)
The maximum outstanding balances due from the related parties RENEFEERKBEBE A NS R
during the years presented are as follows: BIEEBITT :
2017 2016
—E—iF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TET
118
= Amount due from Company A FE U A B AR FRIE 67 394
g Receivables and payables from/(to) the above related parties were e, (FEAF) L3t B3 Bk 75 69 & UK
g unsecured, interestfree and repayable on demand. The amount due BREMNFEHRERM 2B
Z—_,_ from Company A was neither past due nor impaired. The carrying RBRERER - BKAAIABRK
e amounts of the amounts due from/|o) related parties approximated HEABEINRRE- &Y (R
% to their fair values and are denominated in HK$. All nontrade BB A RENEREIEREEAF
7% balances due from/[to) related parties were fully setfled before BAEE RABTEE - ARl
3 listing of the Company's shares on Main Board of The Stock (ERDBEB T EE HHEMERN K
Ef Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 12 May 2015. RABRMHRZZE—RFRAT=
= REBEERARBMAERDAE
1 RETAI 2 BAES -
a
z
-l
S 27. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 27. AREME
~N

As at 30 April 2017 and 2016, the Company and the Group did not RIBE-—+FR-ZB-RFEA=+
have any material contingent liabilities. B ARBARAREHEEAMEAKA
BfE-
.'_:\_ﬁ;{;\

g K




28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Investment in a subsidiary

Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to the owners of

the Company
Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accruals and other payables

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

aE
FRBEE
BRER—HMHMERT

RBEE
& U B /B8 1 ) 3R IR

HEE

Rz
RARER ARG ES

B
feé 18

WD

=N
REBAE
et B P N E A < 5R0R

HEE

HEZREE

28.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M BmERNE (E)

ADFHMBRRFREE
% 5

A B B RO &

2017 2016
—g—tF | —F-xF
HK$/000 HK$'000

87 TR

66,888 606,888
95,887 77,947

8,899 27,900
104,786 105,847
171,674 172,735

8,000 8,000
163,348 164,035
171,348 172,035

326 700

326 700
171,674 172,735

=
0

(87 o B ol 3 5 b 3 B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 28 AR B BARR KK B

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 28 a)
(Continued)
Reserve movement of the Company KNGS
Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
IR 42 7% 8 BB 2itEE #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET TET

N
o

Balance at 1 May 2015 R=-Z—EHf
EA— B = 66,887 (19,0645) 47,242

Total comprehensive loss for  4F & 2 [ & 18 8 58

the year = = (1,575) (1,575)
Shares issued pursuant to BEARBEEET

the Public Offer A% 17 134,000 — — 134,000
Capitalisation issue of shares & A{L B 1T A1 (5,999) — - (5,999)
Transaction costs attributable to AR EEFREAL X 5

the Public Offer BN (9,633) — — (9,633)

Balance at 30 April 2016 A =Z — <&
and 1 May 2016 MA=+HE
—E-XEHEA—H
HY 4 &R 118,368 66,887 (21,220) 164,035

£10¢ Hoday [pnuuy  pajjwi] Auodwo?) sBuipjop [puoypuisiul o0] Off

Total comprehensive loss for 4 [Z 2 E5 B 858
the year — — (687) 687)

Balance at 30 April 2017 R=F—+ &
MA =+ HE &R 118,368 66,887 (21,907) 163,348

fen Bl el B



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

29. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF

29.

DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is sef out

below:

For the year ended
30 April 2017

Executive directors
Lam Man Wah,

Chief Executive Officer
Chan Ka Yee, Elsa
Tsang Hok Man

Independent
non-executive directors

Fung Tat Man

Cheng Kin Chung

Chong Man Leung

Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie

For the year ended
30 April 2016

Executive directors
Lam Man Wah,

Chief Executive Officer
Chan Ka Yee, Elsa
Tsang Hok Man

Independent
non-executive directors

Fung Tat Man

Cheng Kin Chung

Lo Wai Kei, Wilkie

BE-_Z—t#F
mMA=+H
HEE

WITES

R
(ITHREE)

e
Y 3

BIUFNTES

5 3 3
HBzh
HX5
EEE

BE-Z2-—X&§
mA=+H
WFE

HITES

M
(1T &)

BR 5% 125

gEY

BUFNTES
85 32 3L

Bz
[l =S

Fees

e
HK$'000
TET

120
52
68

120

360

116
116
116

348

Salaries

Ee)
HK$'000
TET

2,400
600
600

3,600

2,336
588
5909

3,523

Discretionary
bonus

BETEA
HK$'000
THET

600
150
700

1,450

600
150
800

1,550

A BmERME (E)

BEENSRTBRABZHFEH

FlamT
Estimated
money Employer’s
Directors’ value of contribution
quarters other to pension
rental  benefits scheme Total
HitEH
EEFEE ZEHE EXBHKE
He WEE ST &I waEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FH&ET FExT FER
- - 18 3,018
- - 18 768
- - 18 1,318
- - - 120
- - - 52
- - - 68
- - - 120
- - 54 5,464
444 — 18 3,398
— — 18 756
— — 18 1,417
o o o 116
— - — 116
— — — 116
444 = 54 5,919

EYHYHHUEEY D

I -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BmERMEE (E)

29. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

o (i

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to the directors of the Company
during the year ended 30 April 2017 (2016: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the years ended 30 April 2017 (2016: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 30 April 2017, the Company did not pay
any consideration fo any third parties for making available the

services of themselves as directors of the Company (2016: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

No loans, quasiHoans and other dealing arrangements were
entered info by the Company or ifs subsidiary undertaking in favour
of the directors of the Company, a controlled body corporate or a

connected entity of such direcfors at any time during the year ended

30 April 2017 (2016: Nil).

29.

(b) EBRMAKER

RBE_ZF-—tFHEA=1THL
FE BEAARREEMNERK
BAM(ZZ—XREFE &)

(c) EBBEBER

RBE_FT-—tFHEA=1THL
FE BEEECRUABEHE
WA B BER (=T —NF:
)

(d) BRERE=RHFEMEE=
B XAAHRE

RBE-_Z-—tFHEA=1+HL
FE ARABLEAEME=TX
NEMRKEAERESEBARR A
REEBERB(CE—RF 8-

) BROES - BEESEH
ZEFEABERERE
ERFHNERRELUE
FoURERZEALH
HitbX 5 HWEH

REBEE-_ZFT—tFmMA=+HIE
FEMTABEMA - ANQF) K HH
BRARTEITLTMER  BUE
REEMZZEHRUEFEERA
RAEE BFHESHIEZH X
ANBBEREFBERR(ZT—X
F ) o

ER &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

29. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

() Directors’ material inferests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save for transactions disclosed elsewhere in the notes to the
consolidated financial stafements, no other significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company has a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of or at any time during the year ended 30
April 2017 (2016: Nil).

29.

A BmERME (E)

EERRG  ZHIAEY
ZERA &

RERKEMBHRERWEE i
FHRBEBHORZI  BHEAABATET
UZEMBBAEEEKALAR
REZEREYTEESHMEREE
AFBOEARS ZHEAOR
HE-_ZT—+tFMA=-+HLEF
EFAREMIMNBEATE(Z
T—RNF |-

(o7 5 o 5
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFUBHBE

A summary of the results and of the assefs and liabilities of the Group for the last  REBMBEREM R EENEBEUREE N

five financial years is sef out below: BEZHBEHINMOT
RESULT E

Year ended 30 April

BENA=tHLEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—E-=F ZEZ-NF ZET-RF ZT-—RF| ZB-tE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
FiEL FTAET FTAEL FiET THER

Revenue W 351,636 446,913 442 955 321,322 283,211
124 Cost of sales HERA [216,791) (284,295) (285,780 (206,434) (192,893)
= Gross profit EX 134,845 162,618 157,175 114,888 90,318
5 Other gains/|losses), nef e/ (BR)FH 35 48 (407) (489) 9
o Selling and distribution costs HERDHEKA (82,843) (106,784) (97 663) (105411) | (102,817)
) Administrative expenses X 18,279 (9,997 (30,732) (20,479 (15,627)
g Operating profit/(loss) mERE/ (BB 43,758 45,885 28,373 (11,491) 1 (28,117)
I Finance costs BEKA (249) [361] (559) [667) (441)
o
@ Profit/(loss) before income tax F?Fﬁ B Al / 43,509 45,524 27,818 (12,158) (28,558)
g Income tox (expensel/credit i (B / [7.221) [7,661) (7,795) (491) 867
e
Q
2 Profit/(loss) for the year FEFNB/(FB) 36,288 37,863 20,023 (12,649) | (27,691)
2 Other comprehensive income Hin 2 E R - — _ _ _
> Total comprehensive income/(loss) for FE 2H ki (EE)
E the year okl 36,288 37,863 20,023 (12,649) (27,691)
~
o
3 Total profit/(loss) and comprehensive LA T A + 45 518,/ (F18)
o income/(loss) attributable to: R2mbE (GR) A8
% Owners of the Company ARAEEA 34,529 34,402 16,170 (12,649) (27,691)
Non-controlling inferests 3H7“H§T3§%£ 1,759 3,461 3,853 - -
36,288 37,863 20,023 [12,649) (27,691)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES .
EERERE
For the year ended 30 April
BENA=tHLEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
“E-=fF —Z-MNF :%*ﬂi ZERE | Z2-+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 | HK$/000
FTET TER TER FET TER
Tofal assets i, BEE 99,838 122,903 173,738 203,025 172,096
Tofal liabilities "';ﬂ_z_,":' BEE (23,669) (41,046) (128,853) (44,422) (41,184)
Total equity BRER 76,169 80,9057 44,885 158,603 130,912

H i i W\IM




Tic Tac International
Holdings Company Limited
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